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TO:  NEW YORK STATE CEMETERY BOARD 
  

FROM:  LEWIS A. POLISHOOK, Director, Division of Cemeteries 
 

 CC:  ANTONIO MILILLO, Counsel 
 
 SUBJECT: THE WOODLAWN CEMETERY, NO. 03-0002 
 
 RE:  NEW GARDEN MAUSOLEUMS 

 
DATE:  AUGUST 19, 2020 
 

 
The Woodlawn Cemetery, in the Bronx, NY (the Cemetery) seeks approval of construction of six 
small garden mausoleum structures in a short unpaved road the Cemetery closed to visitors in 
2018. 
 
The Division recommends approval of this application. 
 
Background 
 
The Cemetery dates from 1863 and is approximately 398 acres, all of which are developed.  
The Cemetery is consistently well maintained and responds rapidly to address issues that arise.  
As described in the accompanying report of Senior Accountant Vince Gimondo, the Cemetery 
appears to be in compliance with all applicable Division statutes and regulations. 
 
The Cemetery has very few unsold graves, and primarily sells crypt and niche space now.  It 
has 120 outdoor and 462 indoor mausoleum spaces remaining, and sold 242 crypts and 377 
niches in 2019. 
 
Exhibits 

 
A. Report of Senior Accountant Vince Gimondo dated August 17, 2020 
B. Letter from the Cemetery dated June 15, 2020, with attached exhibits: 

1. Description of project 
2. Anticipated return on investment 
3. Report of “Major Renovation” Including 

i. Map showing location and sign showing road closure in 2018 
ii. Schematic (rendering) 
iii. Projected sales activities 
iv. Construction schematic 

4. Report re 19 NYCRR section 201.11 including 
i. Minutes dated May 27, 2020, and June 11, 2020 
ii. Map showing location 
iii. Renderings 
iv. Return on investment schedule 

5. Excerpt from Form 990 re compensation 
6. 2019 Annual Report 
7. Conflict of Interest Policy 
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C. Corrected Schedule of Income, Expenses, and Fund Balances 
 

Compliance with 19 NYCRR Section 201.11 
 
The cemetery has demonstrated compliance with 19 NYCRR Section 201.11. Specifically: 

 
Approval of the corporation's lot owners, obtained at a special or regular meeting. If not, a 
description of the authorization or approval obtained.  
 
The Cemetery’s Board of Directors met on May 27, 2020 and June 11, 2020 and approved the project 
(part of Exhibit B). 
 
The name of the licensed architect or engineer and the estimated total costs of construction, 
including land to be appropriated, landscaping, embellishments and other features.  
 
JST Architects will design and oversee the installation of the mausoleum units.  Costs are spelled out in 
the report pursuant to 19 NYCRR section 201.11 found in the Application (Exhibit B).  
 
A map or sketch indicating the location of the building, together with a general description 
including the number of crypts and niches.  
There are multiple renderings and maps found in the reports of “Major Alteration” and pursuant to 19 
NYCRR section 201.11 found in the Application (Exhibit B). 
 
Whether the proposed construction is the complete structure or whether units are to be added 
later. If future units are contemplated, the extent of such commitment or plan.  
 
The proposed mausoleums are the complete project.  
 
The source of funds to pay for the construction and the terms of payment.  
 
The Cemetery will use general funds for the entire of the project. 
 
An estimate of the trust funds and the current maintenance funds required to maintain and 
preserve the facility, covering the year-to-year maintenance and long-term preservation.  
 
See the attached report of Senior Accountant Vince Gimondo (Exhibit A) for further financial analysis; 
because these are prefabricated outdoor structures, annual and long-term maintenance will be minimal 
(occasional power-washing as needed is the most significant maintenance cost). 
 
An estimate of the cumulative total revenues from sales based on the projected selling 
prices.  
 
See the attached report of Senior Accountant Vince Gimondo (Exhibit A) for further financial analysis. 
 
A full disclosure to the extent outstanding certificates of indebtedness or land shares are                      
to participate in the sales proceeds.  
 
The Cemetery has no outstanding certificates of indebtedness or land share certificates. 
 
The projected disposition of the total estimated sales revenues, including but not limited to the 
amounts to be allocated for: (A) permanent maintenance and current maintenance funds; (B) 
supplemental trust or special fund; (C) estimated selling expenses, including disclosure of 
promotional plans; (D) recovery of construction costs; (E) general fund use or retention; and (F) 
building operation.  
 
See the attached report of Senior Accountant Vince Gimondo (Exhibit A) for further financial analysis. 
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A copy of the drawing required by paragraph (B) of this subdivision along with an  
indication of the location of the proposed building, and a statement that the notices required by 
such paragraph have been posted in accordance with its provisions.  
 
The Cemetery posted the required signs on April 1, 2020; the 60-day posting period expired on June 1, 
2020.  The Cemetery received no comments.   
 
No Related Parties 
 
The Cemetery represents that no proposed contractor in this transaction is a related party. 
 
Recommendation 
 
The Cemetery is running low on outdoor mausoleum space.  The project is close to an entrance 
to the Cemetery and is likely to sell well.  The Cemetery has a strong history of selling both 
indoor and outdoor mausoleum space.  The structures are relatively small, so they will not 
overpower the existing traditional in ground burials nearby aesthetically.  I recommend approval. 
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MEMORANDUM 
 

DEPARTMENT OF STATE-DIVISION OF CEMETERIES 
   
TO:  LEWIS A. POLISHOOK, Director 
 
FROM:  VINCENT GIMONDO, Senior Accountant 
 
SUBJECT: WOODLAWN CEMETERY, No. 03-002 
 
RE:  NEW MAUSOLEUMS– Maple Mausoleums 
 
DATE:  August 31, 2020 
 

 
By application dated June 30, 2020, The Woodlawn Cemetery Association (the Cemetery) seeks New York 
State Cemetery Board approval of its application to construct nine above-ground garden mausoleum buildings 
composing a total of 384 crypts and 528 niches. The project will be financed by the Cemetery’s general fund 
and will include pre-construction sales. 
 
Similar applications have been presented by Woodlawn Cemetery in the past.  Previously approved and 
developed projects have sold well. The cost of this $1,540,000 project will be withdrawn from the General 
Fund, which had a balance of $ 2,052,274 as of 12/31/2019. There are no Permanent Maintenance loans. 
Woodlawn Cemetery is current with annual filings and fees. 
 
The Cemetery is comprised of 398 acres, all of which are sold except for just under 1,000 graves scattered 
throughout the cemetery (this excludes mausoleum space, space unsuitable to burials because of rock 
formations, and space intentionally left unused). This active cemetery performs over 1,000 burials per year and 
operates a crematory. The Cemetery’s plan to address their limited inventory is to close roads as needed with 
Division approval. Conflict of interest statements are signed by the cemetery’s officers and trustees annually, 
and there are no related parties in this transaction. The cemetery appears to be in compliance with all Division 
requirements.  
 
Cemetery assets as of December 31, 2019 are as follows: 

General Funds $   2,052,274 

Pooled Fund – Perpetual Care $128,828,267 

Permanent Maintenance Fund $  44,320,267 

Special Trust - Restricted $  15,997,580 

Pension Fund $    8,349,731 

Community Mausoleum Fund $    9,336,994 

TOTAL $ 225,362,610 

 
Pooled Funds is an internal designation for a group of perpetual care funds.  Please note the Division’s 
calculation of total assets are different from the cemetery’s Schedule A Fund Balances as its calculation 
included a perpetual care account twice.  
 



 

 

The Community Mausoleum Fund is an account established for supplemental care and maintenance of the 
mausoleums. It is voluntarily funded with an additional 5% allocation from mausoleum sales.  
 
Annual Return on Project: 
The cemetery has submitted a comprehensive summary and analysis of this proposed project.  
They include: 

• Return in Investment Maple Plot Project 

• Crypt Sales Trend 2015-2019 

• Niche Sales Trend 2015-2019  

• Project Cost & Retail Sales Price 

• Net Profit Per Crypt and Niche Sales 

• 10 year Cash Flow Projection 

• Proposed Pricing Model\Return on Investment Analysis 
 
Net Cash Flow prediction (based on analysis and historical data provided by the cemetery): 
Woodlawn expect to recoup its entire investment within three years. 
 
Year 1:  $  565,334 
Year 2:      515,340 
Year 3:                           465,346 
Total:                        $ 1,546,020 
 
Return on Investment: 
 
The ROI= Gain from Investment-Cost of Investment divided by the Cost of investment * 100. 
 
With an investment of $1,540,000, sales of $7,648,320 and a net gain of $2,743,059, 
$2,743,059 -1,540,000/1,540,000*100=1.78 times the Cemetery’s initial investment of $1,540,000.  
 
The cemetery expects expect this to recover their investment within three years. 
 
This calculation is based solely on the cemetery’s own projection of ROI.  We have not attempted an 
independent calculation of ROI because we do not have enough information to make a precise estimate of 
annual demand for crypt and niche spaces.  However, as we explain in the recommendation below, we are 
confident, based on past sales and the cemetery’s overall management and track record, that this project will 
be profitable for the cemetery. 
 
Projected Disposition of Sales Revenues: 
 
The projected distribution of sales revenues is: 
 
Crypt Sales $4,744,320 
Niche Sales $2,904,000 
Total Sales $7,648,320 
Statutory Deduction (PM)—10% ($764,832) 
Contribution to Community Mausoleum Fund ($382,416) 
Commissions—15% ($1,147,248) 
Discounts—14% ($1,070,765) 
Cost of Project (Recovery of Construction Costs) ($1,540,000) 
Net (to General Fund) $2,743,059 

 
The “discounts” apply to pre-construction sales in the new section; 10% for crypts and 20% for niches.  This 
estimate assumes, conservatively, that the entire project will sell out pre-construction.  The Cemetery 
estimates selling out in 10 years, so this “discount” will end up being much less. 
 
  



 

 

Recommendation:  
 

The cemetery has many community mausoleums that are consistently profitable. The current inventory 

of this product, which has historically sold well, is nearly depleted. Woodlawn is a pristine desirable 

cemetery that has little competition and offers a variety of high end inventory. Approval will give the 

cemetery an estimated ten years of inventory. There are a number of notable people interred there that 

are a draw for buyers. The investment of $ 1,540,000 will result in sales of $7,648,320 for a net gain on 

investment of $2,743,059. This will result in a good return with minimal risk.  

 
The Division recommends approval of this project.  
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June 30. 2020

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL DELIVERY
Lewis Polishook, Esq., Director
New York State Division of Cemeteries
Department of Slate
99 Washington Avenue
Albany. New York 12210

Re: The Woodlawn Cemetery (03002)
Major Renovation Application — Construction of Mausoleum Project

Dear Director Polishook:

Attached please find a copy of the application of The Woodlawn Cemetery for the construction of an urgent

and important project consisting of nine (9) above-ground mausoleum buildings composed of a total of384

crypts and 528 niches utilizing the Cemetery’s formally closed White Oak Avenue.

The Cemetery has received no comments during the former period of the posting for road closure and the

subsequent posting of the current project.

The project will follow several recent and successful mausoleum projects at a time when the Cemetery’s

inventory is rapidly declining. The importance of moving forward with this project as soon as possible is

evident in the detailed application materials which follow. This exceptional design and construction effort

would be funded by The Woodlawn’s ample General Fund and this project will include preconstruction

sales as outlined in the application.

Our firm stands ready to answer any questions you might have in order to move this project forward for

final approval of the State Cemetery Board as soon as possible.

Very truly yours,

Featherstonhaugh, Wiley & Clyne, LLP

David F. Fleming, Jr.



The Woodlawn’s Maple Mausoleums
Project Overview

Development Cost: $1,540,000
Project Construction Cost

Sales of Crypts: $4,744,320
384 crypts

Sales of Niches: $2,904,000
528 niches (396 single and 132 companion)

TOTAL SALES: $7,648,320

Annual Return on Project

This project will pay for itself in three (3) years.

Projected gross profit is as follows and as outlined in the detailed
financials attached herewith:

Net Cash Flow
Year 1: $ 565,334
Year2: $ 515,340
Year 3: $ 465,346
TOTA: $1,546,020



WOODLAWN
CEMETERY • CREMATORY • CDNSERVANCY

June 15, 2020

Lewis A. Polishook, Director
State of New York Division of Cemeteries
123 William Street, 20th Floor
New York NY 10038

Re: Application for Pre-Construction Sales of White Oak Ave Mausoleum

Dear Mr. Polishook:

The Woodlawn Cemetery is requesting for your review of the attached application for the pre

construction sales for the construction and development of the Maple Mausoleums on the former

White Oak Ave. which has been closed since March 15. 2018. In accordance with the requirements

of 19 NYCRR 201.16 Report of Major Renovation and 201.11 Procedure for Approval for

Construction of a Mausoleum” we are submitting information relevant to the proposed Maple

Mausoleums building.

The Maple Mausoleums proposal is for a group of small exterior community mausoleums to increase

the limited supply of constructed crypts in order to meet the historical demand for above ground

mausoleums for our lot owners. Additional inventory is required as our total exterior constructed

mausoleum spaces is 120 and our interior inventory is 462. In 2019 Woodlawn sold 242 total crypts

and 377 niches so a new pre-construction mausoleum inventory will allow us to continue to meet

customer demand (see Appendix C). The construction details are included in this correspondence for

your review. I have included a rendering in this correspondence depicting the (9) small mausoleums

with the exterior elevations and accompanying landscape improvements.

We would like to begin offering pre-construction mausoleum space pending the approval of the

Division of Cemeteries and the Cemetery Board.

I believe the information is complete, but if you have any questions, please feel free to call me with

any questions.

Sincerely,

Mitch Rose
President & C.E.O
MJR:mr
Enclosure
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Submission for Compliance
With New York State Directive

WOODLAWN
CEMET[RY • CREMATDRY• CONSERVANCY

MAPLE
MAUSOLEUMS

AT

• 19 NYCRR 201.16, Report of Major Renovation

• 201.11 ‘Procedure for Approval for
Construction of a Mausoleum”

THE WOODLAWN CEMETERY
BRONX, NEW YORK

Submitted by Mitch Rose, President & c.E.O



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Pursuant to both 19 NYCRR 201.16 Report of Major Renovation and 201.11
“Procedure for Approval for Construction of a Mausoleum.” The Woodlawn
Cemetery (referred to herein as “Woodlawn”) respectfully submits the following
comprehensive project application and requests New York State Cemetery Board
approval of the major renovation and mausoleum construction as described herein.

The project is comprised of constructing a total of (9) above ground mausoleum
buildings consisting in total of 384 crypts and 528 niches (396 singles and 132
companion) on what was formerly White Oak Ave., closed and vacated May 15,
2018 60 days after lot owner posting. The Woodlawn Cemetery currently has a
total of 462 constructed mausoleum casket spaces in inventory and most are
interior units, only 120 are exterior mausoleums. Woodlawn sold 242 total crypts
in 2019, 327 in 2018 and 329 in 2017. This downward trend is a result of depleted
inventory and this project will serve to meet historical consumer demand.

The services of J. Stuart Todd were employed to conduct an architectural study the
site and its surrounding monuments and introduced these low profile mausoleums
with natural stone exteriors to blend in aesthetically and create new inventory. The
designs were approved by the Buildings and Grounds Historic Preservation
Committee during the meeting held on February 18, 2020. The pre-construction
sales, appropriation of pre-need sales reserves and future construction financing
were approved at the Finance, Pension & Benefits Committee on May 27th, 2020.
The committees recommended approval to the Board of Trustees during the June
Ii, 2020 meeting and the project was unanimously approved.

The project cost is approximately $1,540,000 and the value of the inventory
created will generate approximately $4,744,320 in crypts sales and $2,904,000 in
niche sales for a total of $7,648,320. These revenue expectations supported by
historical sales figures and are detailed further in this application.

Woodlawn has a demonstrated history of success utilizing this funding and selling
strategy. The State Cemetery Board approved an “Application for Pre
Construction Sales of Hillcrest II Mausoleum” that was approved by the Division



of Cemeteries on April 7, 2014. The construction was for 844 crypts and 766
niches at a cost of $1,985,264. The project was completed on December 15, 2015.
As of the date of this application, Woodlawn has sold 94% of this building
complex and has only 46 crypts remaining to be sold and the sales have generated
over $6,459,000 in total. Woodlawn has a detailed crypt and niche sales history.
The project will ultimately be constructed from our current general fi1nd, a portion
of the sales proceeds as sales are made and existing unsecured credit lines if
required in the next few years as detailed in the Projected Statement of Activities
(Appendix C) included in this submittal.



The charts below identify the project cost net cash payback period in
approximately three years of sales and are included in greater detail later in this
submittal detail for your review.

Project Cost Aver,gs Price
Crypt. 394 512.355 $4,744,320

Totalproj.ctcost $1,400,000 Niches 528 $5,500 $2904000
Construction Contingency $140,000 $7,648,320

$1,540,000 Statutory D.d.15% of Sale. $1,147,248
CommissIon, 15% of Sales $1,147,248
DIscounts 14% of Sales $1,070,786

Net 8.1.. $4,283,059
Cost of the project $1540000

Net Profit $2,743,059

Crypts Gross $4744320 Niche Gross $2,904,000 $7648320
Statu8ry $711648 $435,600 $1147248
Commissions $711,648 $435,600 $1147248
Discounts $664,205 $406,560 $1,070,765

$2,656,819 $1,626,240 $4,283,059
$1000000 $540,000 $1,750,000
$1,656,819 $2,166,240 $2533059

Profit per CryptlNiche $6,919 $3,080 $2,533,059

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year &

Crypts Number Sold 55 50 45 42 35

NIchesNumberSold 110 105 100 80 75

Crypt Total $380,534 $345,940 $311,346 $290,590 $242,158

Niche Total $338,800 $323,400 $308000 $246,400 $231,000

CostoverloYears $154,000 $154,000 $154,000 $154,000 $154,000

Net Cash Plow $555,334 $515,340 $465,346 $362,990 $319,158

NETCASH AFTER (3) YEARS $1,546,020



REPORT OF MAJOR RENOVATION

Submitted on behalf of
The Woodlawn Cemetery

Bronx, New York

Introduction:

Information required pursuant to 19 NYCRR 201.16:

(c) (1): Interference with existing graves and markers, crypts, mausoleums,
roadways and pathways.

The Maple Mausoleums will be located in the cemetery on the previously and
formally vacated White Oak Ave. between the existing Cedar and Maple ground
burial plots (see Appendix A). Thus, there will be little interference with the
existing graves and markers. The mausoleums will be placed offset from each
other at opposite angles to allow case of access for lot owners of the existing plots
and the new mausoleums.

(c) (2): Location, design, and duration of the major renovation.

The (9) small mausoleums located between Cedar Plot and Maple Plot on the
vacated White Oak Ave. The design calls for the installation of six buildings
containing six levels of crypts each and three buildings containing four levels of
crypts each. There will be a total of 384 full casket crypt spaces and 528 total
niches (396 singles and 132 companions created. The overall design includes the
placement of cremation memorial benches in front of each of the nine structures
and a concrete pathway connecting the mausoleums with landscaped beds.

A schematic of the overall design installation by J. Stuart Todd is attached in
(Appendix B). The limited heights of the mausoleums and the use of exterior stone
and honed granite crypt fronts will allow the structures to blend in the landscape
and neighboring plots.



(c) (3): Financial impact on the applicant. The additional inventory of the Maple
Mausoleums will strengthen the overall financial condition of Woodlawn. The
cemetery will eventually construct the project utilizing funds in its General
Operating Account, cash flow from pre-construction mausoleum sales reserves and
existing unsecured credit lines. Construction estimates for the general contractor
Pinebrook Contracting Company and mausoleum construction vendor. The Tribute
Companies, are attached as an exhibit in the accompanying submittal 201.11
“Procedure for Approval for Construction of a Mausoleum” 201.11 Section 3:
The source of funds to pay for the construction and terms of payment.

The total budget for the construction and installation is $1,540,000 which includes
a 10% contingency. The total projected revenues for the project is $7,648,320. The
Projected Statement of Activities at (Appendix C) details the Return on Investment
and demonstrates that the projected cost for the construction is expected to be
largely supported by the revenue generated by sales during the next three years
with an expected payback by July 2023. This is fiwther detailed in 201.11 Section
5: An etimate of the cumulative total revenues from sales based on the projected
selling prices.

(c) (4): Impact on lot owners. The purchase and installation of the crypts and
niches will have a beneficial effect on the interests of our owners. It will provide
additional interment rights to increase our mostly depleted mausoleum inventory.
ft will improve the aesthetics of the overall site and meet our historical sales
demand. In addition, the overall financial condition of Woodlawn will improve as
the return on the investment contributes approximately Si ,256,148 to the P.M. and
C.M. funds at Woodlawn as shown in the Projected Statement of Activities at
(Appendix C) as well as the accompanying submittal 201.11 “Procedure for
Approval for Construction of a Mausoleum” 201.11 Section 4.

(c) (5): Appropriateness for cemetery purposes. Woodlawn is a regulated, not-
for-profit cemetery corporation under New York State law. The construction of a
mausoleum/niche addition is among its permitted purposes.

(c) (6): Impact on the surrounding community. Woodlawn has operated at this
location since 1863 with no objection from the surrounding community.



Woodlawn has always complied, and continues to fully comply, with all New York
State and City of New York statutes and regulations.

(c) (7): Effect on public health and safety, the environment, or natural
resources. It is expected that there will be no adverse effect on public health and
safety, the environment, or natural resources.

(c) (8): Measures taken to minimize or eliminate hazards to public health and
safety, the environment, or natural resources. This project poses no known
hazards public health and safety, the environment, or natural resources.

(d): Approvals and permits. This project was approved by the Board of Trustees
of Woodlawn on June 11,2020. Additional approvals required for this project are;

• Approval of a Major Renovation by the New York State Cemetery Board;
• Approval of 201 .11 “Procedure for Approval for Construction of a

Mausoleum by the New York State Cemetery Board.
• Issuance of a building permit by the City of New York.

(e): Certification. A schematic for construction is attached as Appendix D.



APPENDIX A

REPORT OF MAJOR RENOVATION - THE WOODLAWN CEMETERY

Google Earth Location in Cemetery

Signage — Road Closure White Oak Ave.
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APPENDIX B

REPORT OF MAJOR RENOVATION - THE WOODLAWN CEMETERY

Schematic — Oakwood Mausoleums Rendition
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APPENDIX C

REPORT OF MAJOR RENOVATION THE WOODLAWN CEMETERY

Projected Statement of Activities for Sales of Crypts & Niches
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201.11 Section 1: A copy of the minutes of the Board of Trustees is
included with the approved resolution by the Board of Trustees on the
following page with this filing of Directive 201.11.

(1) At the regularly scheduled meeting of The Woodlawn Cemetery Board
of Trustees on June 11,2020 Mr. Mitch Rose, President& C.E.O.,
informed the Board of Trustees that both the Building Grounds and Historic
Preservation Committee and Finance committee had approved the design,
location and pre-construction sales of the proposed exterior Maple
Mausoleums. He stated that the mausoleums crypt buildings would be
Barre Grey and have a honed finish to match the nearby monuments. Staff
was authorized to make application with the NYS Cemetery Board for
approval of the design, location and construction plan of the project upon
approval by the NYS Cemetery Board.

The excerpt of minutes of the Board of Trustee meeting are attached with
this application.



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING
OF THE WOODLAWN CEMETERY

BOARD OF TRUSTEES
JUNE 11,2011

A meeting of The Woodlawn Cemetery Board of Trustees was held via
teleconference call and Zoom meeting at 10:00 a.m. on Thursday, June 11, 2020.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Michael Reynolds, Chair, Rita Gail Johnson,
Robert Hall, Aramina Vega Ferrer, Kathleen
Pavlick, Brian McLendon, Ian Rowan, Paul Engel,
Gus Christensen, Andrew Peters and Mitch Rose

MEMBERS ABSENT: None

OTHERS PRESENT: Jonathan Butler, Board Advisor
Nicholas Pisano and Edward Markiewicz,

Woodlawn Cemetery Management

Mr. Reynolds presided and called the meeting to order at 10:04 a.m. Mr.
Markiewicz acted as Secretary. As all eleven Trustees on the Board were present
at the meeting, a quorum for the transaction of business was attained.

Upon motion duly made, seconded and unanimously adopted:

RESOLVED, to approve and affirm, the Resolution of the Buildings,
Grounds and Historic Preservation Committee approved on April 18, 2020,
and the Resolution of the Finance, Pension and Benefits Committee
approved on May 27, 2020, to authorize Mr. Rose to apply to the New York
State Division of Cemeteries for authorization to begin pre-construction
sales of space in nine small Community Mausoleums on Maple Plot and
then begin construction at a later date.

Edward F. Markiewicz
Secretary

1



MINUTES OF THE WOODLAWN CEMETERY
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

FINANCE, PENSION AND BENEFITS COMMITTEE MEETING
May 27, 2020

A meeting of The Woodlawn Cemetery Board of Trustees Finance, Pension and BenefitsCommittee was held via Zoom and teleconference call at 10:00 a.m. on Wednesday, May27, 2020.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Rita Gail Johnson, Chair, Ian Rowan, Andrew Peters, Brian
McLendon and Mitch Rose

MEMBERS ABSENT: None

OTHERS PRESENT: Shale Lapping and Neha Patel, IPEX
John E. Leslie III,

Miller / Howard Investments
Michael Reynolds, Chair

Woodlawn Cemetery Board of Trustees
Nicholas Pisano and Edward Markiewicz

Woodlawn Cemetery Management

Ms. Johnson presided and called the meeting to order at 10:02 a.m. Mr. Markiewicz actedas Secretary. As all five Committee members were present at the meeting, a quorum forthe transaction of business was attained.

Mr. Rose also informed the Committee that he was seeking the Committee’s approval ofthe construction of a series of small community mausoleums on a vacant road in MaplePlot. He said the project had previously been approved by the Buildings, Grounds andHistoric Preservation Committee. He said the project would result in the creation of about400 crypt spaces at a cost of about $1.4 million and would generate approximately $5.5million in revenue.

Upon motion duly made, seconded and unanimously adopted:

RESOLVED, to approve the construction of a series of nine small community
mausoleums on Maple Plot and to recommend the entire Board of Trustees of The
Woodlawn Cemetery approve the project as well when it will meet on June 11,2020
provided that approval of the New York State Division of Cemeteries is first
obtained before pre-construction sales begin.



201.11 Section 2(a): The name of the licensed architect or engineer and
the estimated total costs of construction, including land to be appropriated,
landscaping, embellishments and other features.

a. The design architect and construction contractors for the project is:
Design & Project Estimators:

• J.S.T. Architects 2919 Welborn Street, Suite 101
Dallas, Texas, 75219 Phone: 214.522.4033

Estimate (attached)
Construction:

• Pinebrook Contracting Company
104 Ridge Road
New City NY 10956
914-403-1724

• The Tribute Companies
352 Cottonwood Aye, Hartland, WI 53029
262-367-9991

The estimated total cost estimate of construction for
attached as prepared by JST Architects:

Crypts
Niches

__________

Subtotal
10% Construction Contingency

_________

Total Estimate

Constructed total casket and niche unit cost:

o Mausoleum Crypts(per bid)
Crypt Spaces x cost per space
384 $2,950

o Niches (per bid):
Niche Spaces x cost per space = construction cost

$506 $ 267,200
$1 ,400,000*

based on a planning
or more upon

the project is

$1,132,800
$ 267,200
$1,400,000
$ 140,000
$1 ,540,000

528

= construction cost
$1,132,800

*The total estimated construction cost is
estimate so the cost could be either less
completion.
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201.11 Section 2(b): A map or sketch indicating the location of the
building, together with a general description including the number of crypts
and niches.

b. Google Earth Images are included in this submittal depicting the area
of development in reference to the overall cemetery is included as
well as a portion of the same map expanded.

A rendition depicting the mausoleum/niche configuration on the
vacated White Oak Ave. is included by J.S.T. Architects.

The project was designed by the architectural firm J. Stuart Todd.
The building consist of precast crypt units by The Tribute Companies
set in place with mausoleum crypts and niches to the specifications of
the architect. The total number of crypt/niche spaces is as follows:

Crypts: 384 crypt spaces (total)
Exterior Niches: 528 urn spaces (total)

o 396 single niches
o 132 companion niches
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201.11 Section 2(c): Whether the proposed construction is the complete
structure or whether units are to be added later. If future units are
contemplated, the extent of such commitment or plan:

c. There is no current commitment or plan for this development to have
any expansion.

201.11 Section 3: The source of funds to pay for the construction and
terms of payment:

(3) The cemetery is seeking approval to start pre-construction sales for the
mausoleum upon approval by the New York State Cemetery Board. The
pre-construction sales proceeds will be escrowed in a segregated account
to be used to make trust contributions, construction payments and cover
sales and commission cost. The projected cost for the construction is
expected to be largely supported by the revenue generated by sales during
the next three years with an expected payback by July 2023 as shown in
the included REPORT OF MAJOR RENOVATION Appendix C. The
cemetery will eventually construct the project utilizing funds in its General
Operating Account, cash flow from pre-construction mausoleum sales
reserves and existing unsecured credit lines, if required.

If death occurs prior to the completion of the mausoleum the family is
entitled to request and receive a full 100% refund or have the deceased be
temporarily entombed and relocated to their mausoleum crypt upon
completion at no additional expense. The cemetery will construct the
project at a future date utilizing pre-need sales escrows and existing
unsecured credit lines as well as funds in its General Operating Account.



201.11 Section 4: An estimate of the trust funds and the current
maintenance funds required to maintain and preserve the facility, covering
year to year maintenance and long term preservation.

(4) We believe that the trust funds and the current maintenance funds
required to cover the building are adequate as follows:

The contributions to the Permanent Maintenance Fund will be received as
follows:

Total:
Crypts 384 crypt spaces
Exterior Niches 528 urn spaces

Crypts: 15% OF TOTAL SALES $4,744,320
10% - Permanent Maintenance Fund
5% - Community Mausoleum Fund

15% x $4,744,320 = $711,648
(384 spaces x $12,355 average retail values)

Niches: 15% OF TOTAL SALES $2,904,000
10% - Permanent Maintenance Fund

5% - Community Mausoleum Fund
15% x $2,904,000 = $435,600
(528 spaces x $5,500 average retail values)

Total Permanent Maintenance & Community
Mausoleum Trust Fund Deposits:

= $1,147,248

Therefore, even at a rate of 3% return on investment of the new trust fund
money, we will have more than enough interest Thcome to adequately
maintain the building currently and into the future.



201.11 Section 5: An estimate of the cumulative total revenues from sales
based on the projected selling prices:

(5) The projected estimated sales at retail prices are as follows:

# of spaces avg. sale Total Revenues

Crypts 384 $12355 $4,744,320
Exterior Niches 528 $ 5,500 $2,904,000

TOTAL RETAIL VALUE $7,648,320

The following pages itemize the retail values for each of the exterior crypts
and niches.
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201.11 Section 6: A full disclosure to the extent outstanding certificates of
indebtedness or land shares are to participate in the sales proceeds.

(6) Certificates of indebtedness or land shares will have no impact or
participation in the sales proceeds.

201.11 Section 7: The projected disposition of the total estimated sales
revenues, including but not limited to the amounts to be allocated for is as
follows:

a. Permanent Maintenance Fund: 10%
• Crypt sales $474,432
• Niche Sales $290,400

$764,832
b. Supplemental Maintenance Fund:

Community Mausoleum Fund 5%
• Crypt sales $237,216
• Niche sales $145,200

$384,416

Total $1,147,248

c. Selling Expenses are anticipated to total 20% of the retail value of the
building. This is broken down as follows:

o Commissions 15%
o Advertising 3%
o Sales Administration 2%
o TOTAL 20%

d. Construction cost will be recovered as each sale is made.

e. We do not anticipate retaining any of the initial proceeds to be placed
in the general fund due to the current needs of capital improvements
and other operating expenses at the cemetery.

f. As stated in Section 4, the cemetery feels that less than 1% of the
proceeds will be needed for the mausoleum operations and to that
end, the interest earned on the trust fund contributions will suffice for
both yearly upkeep and capital improvements.



201.11 Section 8(a): A copy of the drawing required by paragraph (b) of
this subdivision along with an indication of the location of the proposed
building, and a statement that the notices required by such paragraph have
been posted in accordance with its provisions.

a. Attached is a copy of the exterior crypt/niche mausoleum rendering
as used on the signs required in paragraph 2(b). This same signage
was placed in the lobby and at our entrance gates on our sign
notification boards.

The notification signage for Lot Owner comments (copy attached) has
been posted since April 1, 2020 in accordance with the provision.
There have been no comments as of the date of this application.

201.11 Section 8(b): In addition to its submission to the Cemetery Board,
the cemetery corporation shall, no earlier than 10 days prior to such
submission; post mausoleum construction notices in the immediate
proximity of the proposed mausoleum, the cemetery office and in a manner
so as to not violate local zoning ordinances or create a traffic hazard, all
entrances. Each mausoleum construction notice shall provide information
written in plain English concerning the mausoleum proposed and include a
drawing, which shall be an appropriately apt rendition designed to give a
fair impression of the construction. In addition, such notices shall reveal
the telephone number and address where comments may be received and
the last date on which such comments will be accepted, which shall be no
earlier than 60 days following the notices are posted. The provisions of this
paragraph shall not apply to the construction of an addition to an existing
mausoleum if the number of crypts to be added does not exceed 250
spaces.

b. The cemetery posted these signs as directed on April 1, 2020 and
they remain posted as of this date.
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Department of State

DIVISION OF CEMETERIES
NEWYORK I Division of
STATE OF

poRTuNITy Cemeteries Albany. NY

9) Washington Avenue

Telephone: (58} 474-6226

wvA.dcs.ny.gov

SCHEDULE A — INCOME AND EXPENSES AND FUND BALANCES

For any income or expense category where there is a significant increase or decrease in income or expenses, please provide a
brief explanation. Not all cemeteries will have income and expenses in all of these categories

LeterY
Name New York State Cemetery Five Digit ID Number

YEAR ENDING 12/31/19 111131/18 12/31/17 12/31116

SIZE AND INVENTORY

Acres-Total 3QC1 3C15

Acres-Developed and Sold 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01

%mrAcres-Developed and Unsold

BURIALS AND LOT SALES 1____

Bunals o3A o12.
Number of lots (graves,
crypts, niches) sold (3

INCOME (RECEIPTS)

Lotsand gravesales ç (o3’ Fi i57-1b

Interment fees 1 5 2 ( i 2SS V 3 213 L\$

Foundations 00

Dividends and interest

Donations L4..

Other-specify: kk c
t$SC.( if Ct.\

attach additional sheet(s) as needed

Other-specify:

C• \ :fl [, f7
attach additional sheet(s) as needed

Other-specify;

Ont a oic
attach additional sheet(s) as needed

TOTAL RECEIPTS r, 8G2saoo 2o t0i3$’EQO 1j5Q1iO($410O

DOS-2136 (04/19) Page 1 of 3



SCHEDULE A - INCOME ANO EXPENSES AND FUND BALANCES
Cemetery Name New York State Cemetery Five Digit ID Number

YEAR ENDING 12)31/17 12)31/16
EXPENSES (DISBURSEMENTS)

12/31/19 12/31/18

EmployeeWages Loo S19 j 5ST1o21 5 5625 5919008

Independent Contractor -

Grave Openings

Independent Contractor
Maintenance and Mowing L o E s N 52°’ 99j S a 0O$bb

Salaries of Officers
8VU (0d1361b Nêt( 5355J

Supplies and Repairs 52 Lo7 s ‘9’Lfl. 2 L009 7

Equipment
C.) 3 tvi€> i25100

Insurance — General Uability 9 3 9 ]t 039 \ \ S 55

Workers Compensation 33r*iS y15s2

Commercial Crime!
Employee Dishonesty

Vandalism and Assessment Fee 5 34$ 2tk’Llt 2 27O P4
Other — specify;

attach additional sheetas needed 32 9 00q coo 6o9 959 5RIb 51

Other — specify;

attach additional sheet as needed

Other — specify;

attach additional sheet as needed

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS fl \T1 %2(w $i,9Q ]-59&al6I tj!j 13$G

OPERATING SURPLUS (LOSS) ( s]q L.jL) $ 0.00 (, %s,q 93)$ 0.00 (3o29 V40>$ 0.00 42kd2o 1Øocoe

INTER-FUND TRANSFERS

Transfers
$ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00To Operating Account

From trust funds (retained
income from previous years) $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $4Y00 $ 0.00

From other funds (i.e., special,
bequests, pre-need, etc.) q

‘
ID $ 0.00 52] 3911 $ 0,00 mfl. qqo ea

TOTAL TRANSFERS FROM
OTHERFUNDSTO 3 $0.00OPERATING ACCOUNT $0.00

DOS-21 36(04/19) Page 2 of 3



SCHEDULE A - INCOME AND EXPENSES AND FUND BALANCES
Cemetery Name New York State Cemetery Five Digit ID Number

YEAR ENDING 12131/19 12131/18 12/31/17 12131/16

FINANCIALASSETS
(FUND BALANCES)

——-— 2o5 2211 1213 -tco 330 I31f9OGeneral Fund
t ao’, 1%

$ 0.00
Qao 443n1’’ l33(,(lS(YaG 11GM $040

Permanent Maintenance Fund Z2J 2.(O1 søo 3—V-U.3 sjLeui 9w 2it’G, $c0o0 r1i32k5’t 1øoG’

Perpetual Care R-rfl $ 0.00 3qq 0zqq $ 0.00 iç1c7 W5 $iØ q5i 3UOE’

Special Trust (e\r-J-rd
4)

5W $ 0.00 3D()? 3’j steg ‘tfl &5(O $ 0.00 29o39 gjy

Penor, ‘1 oo’i9 tS’ 7\3( 6O
Other C %rtw 1 3 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 8 iS3\(o
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS a ‘-io ol $ 0.00 3o9 Nfl Qn $?.W fl 9o. (‘; $A0

PER ACRE ANALYSIS’

Total Income Per
DevelopedAcre o’rj A $ 0.00 $0.00 nc’ $0.00 $0.00

,, 4t $ 0.00 $0.00 (.3 n:N $0.00 3RtN(02 > $0.00

Netlncome(Loss)Per $0.00 .. $0.00 / s $0.00 r $0.00
DevelopedAcre S ( ‘i2 ,‘ a ifl ‘ <

Funds Per Dev&oped Acre I, 3[ $ 0.00 \ \ 5 , $ 0.00 $ 0.00 5’:j}-l $ 0.00

Permanent Maintenance Loan

Approved Date

Original Loan Amount

Current Balance 94
NOTES:

DOS-2136 (04/19) Page 3 of 3



sNAL FIN44AL REPORT OF CEMETERY CORPORATION

PAR13IWO-OPE ING STATEMENT
NUMBER AND NAME

03.002 The WoodIajn Ccmc-I-cry

COG S

-Th
rro.’rf:fl2 -ec5

;>kcr. ices

tS

\t

TT $

;. D4cr
—

2rrc1 I (flrrcs $

\_OCta ]rc’ s_
—k-r’ic’’. r-;: ‘

p
61 0
t.flf’.l-ri

,1

2 tc,539
1*1 lcr[C0

$ ‘ 2 13L-I

$

PART THREE — STATEMENT OF OPERATING FUNDS & TRUST FUNDS

GENERAL FUND (GF) — SCHEDULE OF ACCOUNTS and BALANCES

Type = CD, Mutual Fund, Savings Account, Stocks, etc.

Other Receipts — Detail Schedule
( -.-

- .J 3)

$

$

j.4V3Cry4 1’tHCJL $

_Li.5, rCih;r.?n:n1 $

L.cQpne i2’.-. !tst $

DATE — Reporting Year End

j7

Other Disbursements — Detail Schedule

IJ000o

7 U5?-

7S(,S.

$__________

$ 331’1QI

$

$ .

$ Ll’7J37\

$ ‘—ko\

\c\fl SRO
•1 •) 1’ pH.

I

\[jC gj ç,’

, $

L,)r,.:•.:tcr2: Looqr-j $ J 8—/sqL]

$
( r* pt.rii cè c1cv+)

— () ..{4, I.. $ áS.) t7.

$

$
..

$

—__________ $

Other Receipts (must equal total

online f on previous page.)

$

$ 0.00
Other Disbursements (must equal

total on line ron previous page.) $ (a 32 I L\ 0 0.00

List reporting year end balances of all accounts containing GF. For all investment accounts, also list cost basis.
if additional space is required.

Last 4 Digits
of Account #

52oO
L1007

Type
of Account

0-lock--

Financial Institution

1.
F?doc

_______

Total of General Fund Assets at Reporting Year End

Attach schedule

Balance-Reporting
Year End-

at Cost

—

I S3(9ô

Balance-Reporting
Year End-

at Market
$ J’Lj5j)Q

$ jjo7I.5’2

$

$

$

$ 0.00$ 0.00

DO3-0415 (Part 1-3)-f (Rev 11119) Page 3 of 6



*Type = CD, Mutual Fund1 Savings Account, Stocks, etc.

DOSQ4j5 (Pail 1-3).f (Rev 11/17)

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT OF CEMETERY CORPORA11ON

PART TWO - OPERATING STATEMENT .. ..

F ETERY NUMBER AND NAME
.

DATE — ReportIng Year End

[_ —

3oo Thc We;I/ctun Crawler1 13131

Other Receipts— Detail Schedule Other Disbursemeilts — Detail Schedule

In-v/ $
CCUS s

I—iflnlcr $ .

i?4 jc’;s $ 3j (9J

. $ .fl,4f — ....YhhhrS . $

Ccrcif ‘s $ l’ II

CC!flSu±JP R.’tsn; $ a icon Ii . $

Offi. R,A,*n,uf5 $ •.om rjr $ ;‘ .fl

.
.

$
. $ ‘it—1:

Dfv( b $ -
?Lq,v $ 7 ‘?

Trewci $ 110170

$ ./pj( — $ i too

$ .

Oales OLLkeach $ tj’$ (/9

.

. 4l

..- ..
$____________

Orner s____________

-________ $ ..

$

——______________ $ Lj - 8id. if $

Other Receipts (must equal total Other Disbt.rsements (must equal

on line f on previous page.) $ 4 7e.c. total on liner on prcvlous page.) $ (:, €YJ9 (‘hO

PART THREE- STATEMENT OF OPERATING FUNDS & TRUST FUNDS

GENERAl. FUND (GF) —SCHEDULE OF ACCOUNTS and BALANCES

List reporting year end Dalances of all accounts cQntalnTn9 F. For all Investment accounts, also list cost basis. Attach schedule

if additional space Is required.

Financial Institution

1.

_______

3.

Last 4 Digtts
of Account #

Type*
of Account

C; T€. Ic

Total of General Fund Assets at Repofling Year End

6alanceReportlng
Year End-

at Market

— $ ]‘ji

$ “t26 nqC

$

________________

$

_______________

‘S

_______

•$ 3n3v-t

Balance-Reporting
Year End-

at Cost
1C) r11

LtL 3CC.

&
L;11.tjJ I

Page 3 of 6



ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT OF CEMETERY CORPORATION
PART TWO - OPERATING STATEMENTCEMETERY NUMBER AND NAME

L O3coqb( t0ocS/0n (c’7n-/crc/

-

_
_
_
_

Other

Other Receipts (must equal total
on line f on previous page.)

$

$

DATE — Reporting Year End
/)/3i Jcci 7__—

Disbursements — Detail Schedule

IYTh4cric)s $ o9ojiJ —

$ 13izfr/9W ——
—

____

_
_
_
—

$
_
_
_

_
_
_
_
_
_

Pc3j3 3ecLinki
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
__Joon In]en s__±7uiQC —— o-d;* cPe $

1.7.

_
_
_
_
_

?3780U-i-her
$____________

$

$

$

$

$

$

PART THREE - STATEMENT OF OPERATING FUNDS & TRUST FUNDS
GENERAL FUND (GF) - SCHEDULE OF ACCOUNTS and BALANCES_ist reporting year end balances of aU accounts containing SF. For all investment accounts, also list cost basis. Attach schedule

I additional space is required.

Last 4 Digits Type4
Balance-Reporting Balance-Reporting

Financial Institution
of Account # of Account Year End- Year End-

at Market at Cost

JCI [CI CIJ irvif ‘J3&0

______________

$ 3.55?C7 35.5907

____

________________

*07 jidK
$

____

&5€.

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

_
_
_
_

_
_
_
_
_
_

$

_
_
_
_
_

_
_
_
_
_

iL533O

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

al of General Fund Assets at Reporting Year End

S= CD. Mutual Fund Savings Account, Stocks, etc.

$

$

Other Receipts— Detail Schedu’e

bOoed/awn 5er-1ny $ JO 000. coiid(Cbc$ J839.ooDxpo. i+s_ $ c3G 3 “53 (10.2Ø o&4?n:DQtU) $ b?0O 003.00
$

_$
-

_

_

_

_

_

_

_

_

_

$_

$

$-_______________

Other Disbursements (must equal
total on line ron previous page.) $ &0 U 959

$

0415 (Part 1-3)-f (Rev 11(173



The Woodlawn Cemetery
Year Ending 2016

Annual Financial Report of Cemetery Corporation

Other Disbursements Detail

Benefits 840,224

Material 1,554.884

Public Relations 180,967

Professional Fees 376,271

Utilities 293,125

Vehicle & Equip Repair 171502

Admin Fees Meals & Travel 175,256

Lease 84,577

IT 92,761

Postasge - Dues -

Office Equip- 95,727

Miscellaneous Other 245,778

CIP 637,627

Prpoerty& Plant 1017,877

(no Equipment)

Transfers to Money Market 150000

$5,916,576



Department of State
DIVISION OF CEMETERIESSTATE OF

WYORI( I Division of
One Commerce Plaza

99 Washington Avenue
OPPORTUNITY. Cemeteries

Albany. NY 12231-0001
Telephone: (518) 4)4-6226

wvwdos nyoovSCHEDULE A — INCOME AND EXPENSES AND FUND BALANCESFor any income or expense category where there is a significant increase or decrease in income or expenses, please provide abrief explanation. Not all cemeteries will have income and expenses in all of these categoriesCemetery Name
New York State Cemetery Five Digit ID Number

YEAR ENDING 12/31/19 12131/18 12/31/17 12/31/16SIZE AND INVENTORY
Acres-Total

Acres-Developed and Sold 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01
Acres-Developed and Unsold

l
BURIALS AND LOT SALES
Burials

Number of lots (graves,
crypts, niches) sold

INCOME (RECEIPTS)

Lots and grave sales

Interment fees

Foundations

Dividends and interest

Donations

Other-specify;

attach additional sheet(s) as needed
Other-specify;

attach additional sheet(s) as needed
Other-specify;

attach additional sheet(s) as needed

TOTAL RECEIPTS
$ 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

DOS-2136 (04119)

Page I of 3



SCHEDULE A — INCOME AND EXPENSES AND FUND BALANCES
Cemetery Name

New York State Cemetery Five Digit ID Number

YEAR ENDING 12/31/19 12/31/18 12131/17 12/31/16EXPENSES (DISBURSEMENTS)

Employee Wages

Independent Contractor
Grave Openings
Independent Contractor
Maintenance and Mowing
Salaries of Officers

Supplies and Repairs

Equipment

Insurance — General Liability

Workers Compensation

Commercial Crime/
Employee Dishonesty

Vandalism and Assessment Fee
Other

— specify;

attach additional she& as needed
Other — specify;

attach additional sheet as needed
Other — specify;

attach additional sheet as needed

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS $ 0,00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00

OPERATING SURPLUS (LOSS)
$000 j $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00

INTER-FUND TRANSFERS

TOt’ Account $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00
From trust funds (retained
income from previous years) $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00
From other funds (i.e., special,
bequests, pre-need, etc.) $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00
TOTAL TRANSFERS FROM
OTHER FUNDS TO
OPERATING ACCOUNT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
DOS-2136 (04/19)

Page 2 of 3



SCHEDULE A - INCOME AND EXPENSES AND FUND BALANCES
Cemetery Name

New York State Cemetery Five Digit ID Number

YEAR ENDING 12/31/19 12/31/18 12/31/17 12131/16FINANCIAL ASSETS
(FUND BALANCES)

General Fund
$ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0,00 $ 0.00

Permanent Maintenance Fund
$ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00

Perpetual Care $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00
Special Trust

$ 0.00 $ 0,00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00

Other $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00

PER ACRE ANALYSIS’

Total Income Per
Developed Acre $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 s 0,00
Total Expense Per

$ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00
Developed Acre
Net Income (Loss) Per

$ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00Developed Acre

Funds Per Developed Acre $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00

Permanent Maintenance Loan

Approved Date

Original Loan Amount

Current Balance

NOTES:

DOS-2136 (04/19)
Page 3 of 3



Department of State

WYORK

I Division of one Commerce Plaza

DIVISION OF CEMETERIES

STATE OF 99 Washington AvenueOPPORTUNITY. Cemeteries Albany. NY 12231-0001
Telephone: (618)474-6226

www.dos,ny.gov

SCHEDULE A — INCOME AND EXPENSES AND FUND BALANCES
For any income or expense category where there is a significant increase or decrease in income or expenses, please provide a
brief explanation. Not all cemeteries will have income and expenses in all of these categories

Cemetery Name New York State Cemetery Five Digit ID Number

YEAR ENDING 12/31/19 12/31/18 12/31/17 ;:42/31116

SIZE AND INVENTORY
Acres-Total jqe’ 398 3qe,
Acres-Developed and Sold 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01

Acres-Developed and Unsold

BURIALS AND LOT SALES

Bun&s o12.
Number of lots (graves,
crypts, niches) sold 0 J 3

INCOME (RECEIPTS)

Lotsandgravesales \(O W3 1SYo19 5’-\(o1c&o 2 %22b

lntermentfees 115 q 2,3’-k11 2S3 53 213 2ii8L

Foundations i4’4 25 00 \ ‘43I,2 \22 ‘59

Dividends and interest

Donations
—e--

Other-specify; Pv”o Cqr
H Ccsorit54 3 ‘\ Tao

attach additional sheet(s) as needed

Other-specify;

Ccuvr’ \ Cl L-t IT
attach additional sheet(s) as needed

Other-specify;

CrH.. i26St
attach additional sheet(s) as needed

TOTALRECEIPTS \3558G2$4Ot) kjoI93SW

DOS-2136 (04/19) Page 1 of 3



SCHEDULE A - INCOME AND EXPENSES AND FUND BALANCES
Cemetery Name New York State Cemetery Five Digit ID Number

YEAR ENDING 12/31/17 12/31/16
EXPENSES (DISBURSEMENTS)

12/31/19 12/31/18

EmployeeWages 5S11021 S5S25b 59]9008

Independent Contractor -

Grave Openings

Independent Contractor
Maintenance and Mowing I (oS53’f , 52o9q ‘17o

Salaries of Officers
zq3e, LA361b V-i8%to 5355B

SuppliesandRepairs 2 ioo76

Equipment
q3as2. 2S1OO

Insurance—General Liability \ \ B 55 i

Workers Compensation
)33Lk1S a1’1oq cU152q a’-&ooTh

Commercial Crime?
Employee Dishonesty

Vandalism and Assessment Fee ; 5 J4 ‘-j L1L 2c0 2 o 270 ‘-I
Other — specify;

attachaddithnalshoetasneeded 32 tio9 (, or3q coo ‘\ 609959 5Ib51CO

Other — specify;

attach additional sheet as needed

Other — specify;

attach additional sheet as needed

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS fl 2 C. s.øoo \5c-7463 qg3i)s H

OPERATING SURPLUS (LOSS) ( si j) $ 0.00 ( i%,9 9 3)$ 0.00 (s z’i j 130)$ 0,00 4 2(42o 11)’oc

INTER-FUND TRANSFERS

Transfers
$ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0,00To Operating Account

From trust funds (retained
income from previous years) $ 000

‘ $ 0.00 $JYPO $ 0.00

From other funds (i.e., special,
bequests, pre-need, etc.) q

‘ ; $ 0.00 52] 3 q Ii $ 0.00 t..jC\1 $M3€’O L.\-qqq)

TOTAL TRANSFERS FROM
OTHER FUNDS TO
OPERATING ACCOUNT $0.00 $0.00

DOS-2136 (04/19) Page 2 ot3
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Other Receipts — Detail Schedule
---:- -N\U,’’’-’

Type = CD, Mutual Fund, Savings Account, Stocks, etc.

FINA AL REPORT OF CEMETERY CORPORATION

1V0—OPE INS STATEMENT
.RY NUMBERAND NAME

cia .002 TIw Wood/can Ccrnc4cry
DATE .- Reporting Year End

Other Disbursements — Detail Schedule

— $ COGS

Coh3rvc4.s $ IJ000O

irrijcn+ ècte4cic $ W2000 Rca S:.-n -et5
? —

lqs. rnhurenri $ 7 5tI

pri’ Pc’.-4jvrs $ 7St$. Con-soik”w’..i Vtrs
. $

tt)OQfi $
r’ “)

r’E +rorn hi .-

jj

$
pa.%rqI &Q4k CiCcf)

.3 B7S’/3
U t ç5 ,

3 ¼5!?

l\ D+bcr —

I (‘flrr.s $
,1’ —

U’ 1! C $

$

$

$

$

Other Receipts (must equal total

online f on previous page.) $

$ 22331

$ 314cY

$

$

$ L12O71

S

S \‘-\OkO

9 ?
\ 3C1 VL

S

2j(539

I H It.r( Q
$ i.3b
S

P-par.

o
. T.-Ac ru -‘ $

¼ •i’$ /

f q, N) 0.00

I jg! rt:.

Other Disbursements (must equal

total on line r on previous page.) $ (032iL\09 0.00

PART THREE — STATEMENT OF OPERATING FUNDS & TRUST FUNDS

GENERAL FUND (GF) — SCHEDULE OF ACCOUNTS and BALANCES

List reporting year end balances of all accounts containing GF. For all investment accounts, also list cost basis.
if additional space is required.

Financial Institution

r;docrr4v-i TrL5f
2.

3.

4.

Last 4 Digits
of Account #

‘5200

‘9007

Type
of Account

u)vck

ci’

5.

__________

Total of General Fund Assets at Reporting Year End

Attach schedule

Balance-Reporting
Year End-

at Cost

, 53o98

Balance-Reporting
Year End-

at Market

$ cS9T)fl

$ jjo7/52

$

$

$
205

$ 0.00$ 0.00

DOS-0415 (Part 1-3)-f (Rev 11/19) Page 3 of 6a



ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT OF CEMETERY CORPORATION - -

PART Two-OPERATING STATEMENT . H

r ‘ETERY NUMBER AND NAME
DATE — Reporting Year End

Th tUr ct/cttrn
s’3I3i /3cd’

Other Rec&pts— Detail Schedule Other Disbursements — DetaU Schedule

___________

$__

__

$

$

$

$

_____________________

$

_____________________

$

Other Receipts (nust equal total

on line f on prevlouspage,)

k
—,

3 re!,) E

In
Ow’jj es U .fr’oh

O+her

;35 2c.3

.i;) 7-7.35

d t7 “v-i I

J 1’t

$

$

$ liOl 70

$ i& too
$ i’

I ‘7’j9 ti’ 40

(, d!. Q

Last 4 Digits
of Account #

__________

• JJc()

at Repofling Year End

*Type = CI), Mutual Fund, Savings Account, Stocks, etc.

008-0415 (Part 1.3)4(Rev 11)17)

-

Balance-Reporting
Year End-

at Cost

ii.. i
C/’.J’i_? if JCA’. -

.!.

$

L,b!, ,Set cir: $

$

_fi‘enjfli& $

Ufl I’?e,jn.r’s $

‘5

—

,r
4—’-’---

1_I fl -‘“ - -

• fl-ct- I—Ti-S $

LIhrS $

(‘ticb-I ;- $

1cun Difcn’st $

Er $

$ ._
. ‘.1 j:.iji

-. en2
Other Disbursements (must equal

total on line ron previous page.) $

PART THREE,- STATEMENT OF OPERATING FUNDS & TRYST FUNDS

GENERAL FUND (GF) —SCHEDULE OF ACCOUNTS and BALANCES -

List reporting year end balances of all accounts containing b. For all Investment accoul-its also list cost basis. Attach schedule

if additIonal space Is required.

Financial Institution

1. — , Ndvcic—1

.

3-

______________

4-

5.

Total of General Fund Assets

Type
of Account

(i k Ic

BaIanceReporting
Year End-

at Market

— , $

_____________

- $

_______

$

____

—

j)ii’4’L- $

Page 3 of S



ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT OF CEMETERYPART TWO - OPERATING STATEMENT

_________________

___________

__________

CEMETERY NUMBER AND NAME

DATE-Reporting Year

L -
- O3oo 7b Woctl/a&cn n4crcJ_

)3i JX;i7
Other Receipts — Detail Schedule

Other Disbursements — Detail Schedule

$

_$

Other Receipts (must equal total
on line f on previous page.)

$

_____

_______

$ 153, C3
—

$ cs?cØOj,o

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

Other Disbursements (must equal
total on line r on previous page.) $PART THREE - STATEMENT OF OPERATING FUNDS & TRUST FUNDS

GENERAL FUND (GF) — SCHEDULE OF ACCOUNTS and BALANCES_ist reporting year end balances of aN accounts containing GF. For all investment accounts) also list cost basis. Attach schedute

additional space is required.

Last 4 Digits Type
Balance-Reporting Balance-Reporting

Financial Institution
of Account # of Account

Year End- Year End-
at Market at Cost

hCIuCicv’ irU51

_______

u-fvcJ(
$ 3.55)c7 ‘j.t5ç)O7

‘1

_______

_________

$ ãL2oJ3 35, ‘7, ‘-1

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

_
_
_
_

_
_
_
_
_
_

$

_
_
_
_
_

_
_
_
_
_

= CD, Mutual Fund, Savings Account, Stocks, etc.

i2&LCHCXS

PC56 ‘QCjn Draw

4rig)s
Prc4 f&s

Cr-,ciJ (.2n1 irs

s_._LL/ 99/
s_.iLQJl 693
$

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

_
_
_
_

s_

$—_

_

_

$

_________________
__________

$

_______________
___________

$

___________________

$

__________________

$
$9.

at of General Fund Assets at Reporting Year End

$

$
j.i5.33o$ $

ic9’-i i97/

0415 (Pan 1•3)-1 (Rev 11/17)



a
The Woodlawn Cemetery

Year Ending 2016
Annual Financial Report of Cemetery Corporation

Other Disbursements Detail

Benefits 840224

Material 1554,884

Public Relations 180,967

Professional Fees 376,271

Utilities 293,125

Vehicle & Equip Repair 171,502

Admin Fees Meals & Travel 175,256

Lease 84,577

IT 92,761

Postasge - Dues -

Office Equip- 95,727

Miscellaneous Other 245,778

CIP 637,627

Prpoerty & Plant 1,017,877

(no Equipment)

Transfers to Money Market 150,000

$5,916,576



Department of State

cWVORK

I Division of DIVISION OF CEMETERIES
One Commerce PlazaSTATE OF

99 Washington AvenueCemeteries Albany. NY 12231-0001
Telephone: (518) 474-6226

wwwdos nygov
SCHEDULE A - INCOME AND EXPENSES AND FUND BALANCES

For any income or expense category where there is a significant increase or decrease in income or expenses, please provide abrief explanation. Not all cemeteries will have income and expenses in all of these categories
Cemetery Name

New York State Cemetery Five Digit ID Number

YEAR ENDING 12131/19 12/31/18 12/31/17 12/31/16
SIZE AND INVENTORY
Acres-Total

Acres-Developed and Sold 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01

Acres-Developed and Unsold

BURIALS AND LOT SALES

Burials

Number of lots (graves,
crypts, niches) sold

INCOME (RECEIPTS)

Lots and grave sales

Interment fees

Foundations

Dividends and interest

Donations

Other-specify;

attach additonal sheet(s) as needed
Ot her-specify;

attach additional sheet(s) as needed
Other-specify;

attach additional sheet(s) as needed

TOTAL RECEIPTS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

DOS-2136 (04/19)
Page lot 3



SCHEDULE A - INCOME AND EXPENSES AND FUND BALANCES
Cemetery Name

New York State Cemetery Five Digit ID Number

YEAR ENDING 12/31/19 12/31/18 12/31/17 12/31/16EXPENSES (DISBURSEMENTS)

Employee Wages

Independent Contractor
Grave Openings

Independent Contractor
Maintenance and Mowing

Salaries of Officers

Supplies and Repairs

Equipment

Insurance — General Liability

Workers Compensation

Commercial Crime/
Employee Dishonesty

Vandalism and Assessment Fee

Other — specify;

attach additional sheet as needed
Other — specify;

attach additional sheet as needed
Other — specify;

attach additional sheet as needed

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0,00 $ 0.00

OPERATING SURPLUS (LOSS)
$0.00 [ $0.00 $OMO_( so.oo

INTER-FUND TRANSFERS

Transfers
$ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0,00 $ 0.00To Operating Account

From trust funds (retained
income from previous years) $ 0,00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00
From otherfunds (i.e., special,
bequests, pre-need, etc.) $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00
TOTAL TRANSFERS FROM
OTHER FUNDS TO
OPERATING ACCOUNT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
DOS-2136 (04/19)

Page 2 of 3



SCHEDULE A - INCOME AND EXPENSES AND FUND BALANCES
Cemetery Name

New York State Cemetery Five Digit ID Number

YEAR ENDING 12/31/19 12/31/18 12/31/17 12/31/16
FINANCIAL ASSETS
(FUND BALANCES)

General Fund
$ 0.00 $ 0,00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00

Permanent Maintenance Fund $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00

Perpetual Care $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00
Special Trust

$ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00

Other $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00

PER ACRE ANALYSIS’

Total Income Per
Developed Acre $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00
Total Expense Per

$ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00
Developed Acre
Net Income (Loss) Per

$ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00Developed Acre

Funds Per Developed Acre $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00

Permanent Maintenance Loan

Approved Date

Original Loan Amount

Current Balance

NOTES:

OOS-2136 (04/1 9)
Page 3 of 3



NEWYORK
STATE OF
OPPORTUNITY.

Department of State

DIVISION OF CEMETERIES
One Commerce Plaza

99 Washington Avenue
Albany, NY 12231-0001

Telephone: (518) 474-6226
w’ww,dos.ny,gov

SCHEDULE BI - MAUSOLEUMICOLUMBARIUM RETURN ON INVESTMENT
Cemetery Name New York State Cemetery Five Digit ID Number

The Woodlawn Cemetery 03002 —

TYPE OF APPLICATION MAUSOLEUM ECOLUMBARIUM

ANNUAL GROSS REVENUE
Number of Spaces Average Price Annual Gross Revenue
Per Year* per Space

*Provide a reasonable estimate of annual sales

YEARS UNTIL PROJECT SELLS OUT

Crypts

Number of Years

6.23

6.29

Crypts

Niches

Totals

Crypts

Niches

Totals

Construction costs

50

85

135

346

594

940

$ 12,355.00

$ 5,500.00

TOTAL GROSS REVENUE ON ALL INVENTORY SOLD
Total Number Average Price Gross Revenue**

of Spaces per Space

**For purposes of this calculation! we assume the final 10 percent of spaces will not sell.
Consequently, Gross Revenue represents sales of 90 percent of spaces multiplied by average cost.

$ 12,355.00

$ 5,500.00

$ 617,750.00

$ 467,500.00

$ 1,085,250.00

$ 4,274,830.00

$ 3,267,000.00

$ 7,541,830.00

Niches

(include contractors, professional fees, setup and delivery, permitting, etc.)

Permanent Maintenance Allocation (minimum of 10 percent of Gross Revenue)***

Total Sellinci Expenses

Loan Interest Expenses

EXPENSES

Other (specify)

Total Expenses

$ 1,540,000.00

$ 754,183.00

$ 2,187,131.00

$ 0.00

$ 0.00

$ 4,481,314.00

NET REVENUE $3,060,516.00
***MosI cemeteries allocate 10 percent of gross revenue from lot sales to Preventive Maintenance.

Some cemeteries allocate a higher percentage; those that do must use that higher percentage.

Division of
Cemeteries

DOS-2 133-f (04119)



Form 990 (2019) THE WOODLAWN CEMETERY

93200e 01-20-20

8

13—5670057 Page8

Form 990(2019)

Part VIII Section A. Officers, Directors. Trustees. Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)

(A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F)

Name and btle Average Position Reportable Reportable Estimated
do not chock me e.n one

hours per box, jiloss pson Is both , compensation compensation amount of

week otf,candadrecioc/h,)steo)
from from related other

(list any the organizations compensation

hours for organization V-2J1 099-MISC) from the

related N-2/1099-MlSC) organization
organizations and related

below I organizations

line)

(18) EDWARD MARKIEWICE 32.50
SECRETARY? VP OPERATIONS & miznas 5.00 x — 127,316. 0 96,916.
(19) NICHOLAS PISANO 32.50 — —

TREASURER) VP, FINANCE 5.00 — x —— 164,471. 0 50,134.
(20) DAVID 150)4 37.50 —— —
VP, MARKETING & CEMETERY SERVICES

— x —— 417,227. 0 9,202.
(21) MARLISA MORELAND 37.50 — — —
FAMILY SERVICE COUNSELOR X 276 962. 0 24,010.
(22) MARY LOU MORGAN 37.50 — — — —
FAMILY SERVICE COUNSELOR x 761. 0 33, 704.

(23) ROBERT RESTENaAUM 37.50 — — — — —
FAMILY SERVICE COUNSELOR — x 43,045. 0 32,202.
(24) DENIS TOM 37.50 — — —
ITDIRECTOR x 118,403. 0 24,657.

(25) SUSAN OLSEN 37.50 — — — —
DIRECTOR OF HISTORICAL 115,139. 0 20,969.

k
s.-b.

lb Subtotal 4 ,341,346. 0 387,631.
e Total from continuation sheets to Part VII, Section A 0. 0 0.
d Total(addlineslbandlc) 2,341,346. 0 387,631.

2 Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those liMed above) who received more than $100000 of reportable

compensation from the organization —
—%

3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, tmstee, key employee, Or highest compensated employee on

line la?lf !Yesx complete ScheduleJ for such individual ...i.. — iL..
4 For any individual listed on line la is the sum of reportable Compensation and other compensation from the organization

and related Organizations greater than $150000? If !Yesx complefe Schedule J for such individual ...±.. ...... —

5 Did any person listed on line la receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual for services

renderedtotheorganization? IfYes comoIeteSrhec,jlp.Iforsiir-hnprqnn ._._ —

Section B. Independent Contractors

1 Complete This table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of compensation from

the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organizations tax year.

(A) (B) (C)

Name and business address Description of services Compensation

DAVEY TREE EXPERT COMPANY, 57 E. HANOVER
AVENUE, MORRIS PLAINS, NJ 07950 ANDSCAPING 1,093,835.

PINEBROOK CONTRACTING CO. LLC
P.O. BOX 723, NEW YORK, NY 10956 DONSTRUCTION 774,228.

CARRIER MAUSOLEUMS CONSTRUCTION USA INC.,
1730 SW SKYLINE BLVD, #206, PORTLAND, OR DONSTRUCTION 472,976.

GIBRALTER MAUSOLEUM CONSTRUCTION CO.
101 INTERNATIONAL DRIVE, OAKDALE, PA 15071 DONSTRUCTION 379,682.

ALL CLEAN MAINTENANCE CO.
1245 RHINELANDER AVENUE, BRONX, NY 10461 4AINTENANCE 309,303.

2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than

$100,000 of compensation from the organization 12

10260518 756359 1371385.000 2019.03050 THE WOODLAWN CEMETERY 13713851

































The Woodlawn Cemetery

Financial Statements

December 31, 2019



OPKP
CCONNOR
DAVIES
ACCOUNTANTS AND ADVISORS

Independent Auditors’ Report

Board of Trustees
The Woodlawn Cemetery

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Woodlawn Cemetery which comprise
the statement of financial position as of December31, 2019, and the related statements of activities

and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements,

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States

of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures

in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or

error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s

preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation

of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the

financial position of The Woodlawn Cemetery as of December 31, 2019, and the changes in its net

assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America.

PKF O’CONNOR DAVIES, LLP
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, Y 10525 Tel: 914.3818900 I Fax: 914 381.8910 I w.wpIcfod.com

PlF O’connor Davies LLP is a member firm of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any responsibility or

liability for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms.



Board of Trustees
The Woodlawn Cemetery
Page 2

Repon on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited The Woodlawn Cemetery’s December 31, 2018 financial statements,

and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report

dated March 21, 2019. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as

of and for the year ended December311 2018 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited

financial statements from which it has been derived.

Report on Compliance

With respect to Rule of Procedure 200.4 of the New York State Cemetery Board and in connection

with our audit we confirmed with depositories all cash account balances and we confirmed with the

custodians the investments held as of December 31, 2019. We also reviewed The Woodlawn

Cemetery’s system of internal accounting control relative to cash and investments to the extent we

considered necessary to evaluate the system as required by auditing standards generally accepted

in the United States of America, The purpose of our review was to determine the nature, timing and

extent of the auditing procedures necessary for expressing an opinion on The Woodlawn Cemetery’s

financial statements taken as a whole. In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that

would cause us to believe that The Woodlawn Cemetery is not in compliance with Section 1 507(c)(d)

of the Not-For-Profit Corporation Law. However, it should be noted that our audit was not directed

primarily toward obtaining knowledge of such noncompliance.

Other Matters

Cur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.

The supplementary information on pages 25 to 33 is presented for purposes of additional analysis

and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of

management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other

records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing

procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,

including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other

records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other

additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States

of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the

financial statements as a whole.

The Woodlawn Cemetery’s records for the Permanent Maintenance and Community Mausoleum

Funds identify separately cumulative principal reflecting allocations from the proceeds of the sales of

the lots, crypts and niches and cumulative capital gains or losses from investments. As more fully

described in Note 2 to the financial statements, The Woodlawn Cemetery reflects all income earned

on the investment of such funds in the operations of the General Care Fund as permitted by the New

York State Cemetery Board. Accordingly, there is no cumulative investment income retained for use

in future years.

The Woodlawn Cemetery’s records for the Perpetual Care Fund identifies separately the cumulative

principal for endowment, the cumulative capital gains or losses from investments and the cumulative

income retained for use in future years.

PA’P&’CrMIo- dsIus1 LLP

Harrison, New York
April 8, 2020



The Woodlawn Cemetery

Statements of Financial Position
December31, 2019

(wth summarized totals at December 31, 2018)

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents - Operating
Cash and cash equivalents - Restricted
Accounts receivable
Interfund loan receivab!e (payable)
lntethnd receivable (payabe)
Accrued interest receivable
Marketable securities - Operating
Marketable securities - Restricted
Other assets
Burial land, held for resale - at cost
Property, buildings and equipment, net

Community
General Mauso!eum

Care Fund Fund

$ 1,840,604
3,469

6,148 .802
(4,952,860)

(168.546)
12,868

1,353,761
4,411,274

596.869
433,708

8,789,307

Permanent
Maintenance

Fund

2,478,430
4,430.3 18

11.802

13. 533,285

$ - $ 1,840,604
1,001,957 5,191,631

6. 148, 802

357. 584
1,353,761

213,848,766
596,869

- 433,708
- 8,789.307

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Liabi1ites

Accojnts payable and accrued expenses
Prepaid service charges
Accrued pension
Accrued post-retirement benefits
Accrued wages and salaries
Loans payabe

Total Liabilities

$ 1,883,716 $
4,133,248
4,922,190
4,010,218

304,513
4,460541

19.714,426

- $ - $ 1,883,716
- 4,133,248
- 4,922,190
- 4,010218

-
- 304,513
- 4.460,541

-
- 22,904,329 142,864,143

(1,243,170) 9,439,239 44,882,065 22,904,329 142,864,143 218,848,606 185,075,299

$18,471,256 $ 9,439,239 $44,882,065 $22,904,329 $142,864,143 $238,581,032 $203,967,389

$

Pa rpo t u a I Ca re
Surplus Principal

Fund Fund

- $ - $
339,104 1,394,607 2,452.494

2019 2018
Total Total

102,246
14,159

8, 983 .730

561 799
40,779

42884,880

2,476,430
(4 .927.8 17)

277,978

144,035,597

$ 1,361,717
3,151,652
5,929,377

303,293
1,631,369

183,952,268
351,592
422,546

6, 843. 575

$18,471,256 $ 9,439,239 $ 44,882,065 $ 22,904,329 $142,864,143 $ 238,561,032 $203,967,389

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions
Undesignated
Restbcted by state law
Restricted for perpetual care services

Total Net Assets Without Donor Restrictons

$ $

44,882,065
(1,243,170) -

- 9,439,239

$ 853,656
4 .040 .499
5,335,595
3,835,867

499.473
4,327,000

- 19,714,426 18,892,090

- (1,243.170)
54,321,304

165,768,472

(3,1 53,566)
46,709,302

141,519,563

See notes to financial statements



The Woodlawn Cemetery

Statements of Activities
Year Ended December 31, 2019

(with summarized tolals for the year ended December 31, 2018)

REVENUE
Sales
Cost of saies
Service charges
Investment income
Investment fees
Other income
Income transfer
Interfund transfers
Statutory deductions

Perpetuat care services

Total Revenue

EXPENSES
Program services
Supporting services

Total Expenses

Change in Net Assets From Operations

8efore Other Income and Expense

OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSE
interest income (expense)
Investment fees
Realized gain (loss) on marketable securities
Unrealized gain (loss) on merkelable securities

Net change in trust principal

Tota Other Income and Expense

Change in Net Assets Before Other Changes

OTHER CHANGES

Net periodic pension cost, except service cost

Postretirement and pension benerts liability ad;ustrnent

Change in Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions

NET ASSETS WtTHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Beginning Of year

Community Permanent Perpetual Care

, General Mausoteum Maintenance

Care Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

$ 8,925,029
(759,025)

2,590,506
(59.262)
(1,316)

503.376

383,783 1,577,939 443,028

(1,910) (20,298) (3,503)

- - 4,774,550

(370,411) (1.518,354) -

206,389 988,929 -

- - (3.847,)

217,851 1 ,028,j 1,366,586

(159,206) - - 219,628 -

(2,761) (4,748) (45,200) (6,985) (146,874)

8,616 185,321 (115,396) 671,751

195,390 899,178 5,331,384 1,874,840 20,265,570

-
-

- - 119,789

42.037 894,430 5,471,505 1,972,087 20,910,238

(777.719) - - -

368,461 -
- -

1.910,306 1,11 2,281 8,499,721 3,338,873

7,358,403
5,711.542

13,069,945

$

Surplus

$ $ $

Principal 2019 2018

_____________

Total Total

$ 8,928,029
(759, 025)

2,590,506
7,192,603

(99,812)
503,376

1,888,765
(1,195,318)
3,847,489

15,740,224

6.705,373
6 .757,234

13,462,607

4,847,235
(72,565)

(4,774,550)

$ 8,993,889
(941,308)

2 .650,982
7,103,908
(153,797)
314,755

18,352.877 17.968,429

- - . - 6,705,373

- - - - 8,757,234

- - - 13,462,607

2.277.617 217,851 1,028,216 1,386.586 - 4,890,270 4,898,484

60,420
(206,568)
750,292

28,566,362
119,789

29,290,295

2,319,654 1,112,281 6,499,721 3,338,673 20,910,236 34,160,565 (14,184,525)

(26, 673)
(309,034)

11,247,056
(30,095 .9 11)

101,551

(19,063,009)

20,910,236

(777,719)
3e8.461

33,771,307

(3.153,566) 8,326,958 38,382,344 19.565.658 121,953,907 185,075,299 199,810,144

$ (1,243.170) $ 9,439,239 $ 44,862,065 $22,904,329 $ 142,884,143 $218,648,608 $185,075,299

(700,803)
150,463

(14 .734,845)

End of year

See notes to financial statements



The Woodlawn cemetery

Statements of Functional Expenses

Year Ended December 31, 2019
(with summarized totals for the year ended December 31 2018)

Prooram SeMcee

_______

Supporting Services

___________

2019 2018

Cemetery Cemetery Cemetery Cemetery Cemetery Total Total

Service Menlenance Total Sales Administration Security Total Expenses Expanses

EXPENSES
Wages $ 564,143 $ 610,615 $ 1,374,758 $ - $ 1,172 $ 369,4W) $ 370,652 $ 1,745,410 $ 1,665,012

Salaries 109,906 458,283 628,189 90,864 1.435.366 125,334 1057,504 2.285,753 2,156072

Commission - - - 1,450,904 - 1,450,904 1450.904 1,420826

Payroll taxes 57,823 112,675 170,498 97,437 96,323 61.903 255,603 420,101 413,738

Fringe benefits 80,049 403,736 489,785 85,105 713,745 43,953 842,803 1,332,588 1,383.771

Material 29,033 86,165 115,198 893 1.825 32 2,750 117,948 139,514

Contract services - 1,618,534 1,018.534 - - - 1,618534 1.529.499

Vehicle arid eqLipment repairs 19,176 66,313 85,489 6,524 5,760 7,189 19.473 104,902 136,970

Advenising and printing 3,520 23,634 27.154 195,299 13,890 ‘ 209,169 236,343 187.196

Profeaaionel fees 233 314,048 314,881 10,779 393,277 262 404,338 719,219 726,204

Insurance 26,280 139,070 105,350 - 240,271 - 243,271 405.821 355.745

UtliIies 70,607 117,574 166,181 75,252 79,175 33,405 187,833 376,014 427.733

Repairs and maintenance 91,075 1,033,571 1,124,046 134,694 36,349 21 aol 193,104 1,317,750 694,501

Other administrative expenses 28,080 156,715 188,801 161,017 399,032 19,164 579,213 766,014 1,175,760

Interest expense - 64,961 64,901 145,918 5,659 ‘ 151,577 216,538 199,964

Depreciation 53,332 97.616 150,948 39,474 152,426 - 191,900 342,848 275,420

Tolal Expenses $ 1,199,263 $ 5,506,110 $ 6,705,373 $ 2,500,300 $ 3,574,270 $ 682,004 $ 6,757,234 $ 13,462,607 $ 13,009,945

See notes to financial statements
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The Woodlawn Cemetery

Statements of Cash Flows
Year Ended December 31, 2019

(with summarized amounts for the year ended December31, 2018)

2019 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets $ 33,771,307 $ (14,734,845)

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash

and restricted cash from operating activities
Depreciation 342,848 275,420

Amortization 675,816 941,306

Realized gain on sale of marketable securities (750,292) (11,247,058)

Unrealized (gain) loss on marketable securities (28,566,362) 30,095,911

Postretirement and pension benefits
liability adjustment (368,461) (150,483)

Net periodic pension cost, except service cost 777,719 700,803

Change in operating assets and liabilities (239,456) (661,71j)

Net Cash from Operating Activities 5,643,119 5,219,343

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from sale of marketable securities 5,871,537 70,361,617

Purchase of marketable securities (6,173,773) (73,146,742)

Purchase of property and equipment (2,975,558) (2,055,571)

Net Cash from Investing Activities (3,277,794) (4,840,696)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from line of credit 233,541 -

Repayment of loan (100,000) (320,000)

Net Cash from Financing Activities 133,541 (320,000)

Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,498,866 58,647

CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH

Beginning of year 4,533,369 4,474,722

End of year $ 7,032,235 $ 4,533,369

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Interest paid in cash $ 216,538 $ 199,964

Disposal of equipment 23,700 -

See notes to financial statements
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The Woodlawn Cemetery

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2019

1. Organization

The Woodlawn Cemetery (the ‘Cemetery”) is a not-for-profit, nonsectarian cemetery corporation
organized under the laws of the State of New York. The Cemetery is subject to the provisions
of the New York State Cemetery Law and is exempt from federal income tax under Internal
Revenue Code section 501 (c)(13).

The Cemetery’s primary business is the sale of space for interments and the performance of
cremations. In addition, related sales and services are provided including receiving vault rentals,
endowed care, annual care, inscriptions, memorials and grave decorations. In addition to the
existing above ground and in ground burial sites, management of the Cemetery has identified
approximately 20 acres of undeveloped land for future development of inventory which, based
on current demand, is estimated to extend the sales life of the Cemetery by forty-four years.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation Change in Accounting Principle

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”).

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with US. GAAP requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Net Asset Presentation

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objective of the
Cemetery. Net assets without donor restrictions consist of the following:

Available for general operations: Include all unrestricted resources of the General Care Fund,
which are expendable for daily operations.

Restricted by state and trust laws: Include all resources of the Community Mausoleum Fund,
Permanent Maintenance Fund and the Perpetual Care Funds, which are required to remain
in compliance with Section 1507 of the New York State Not-for-Profit Corporation Law.

7



The Woodlawn Cemetery

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2019

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

General Care Fund

The General Care Fund maintains and supplements the operations of the Cemetery including

the Current Maintenance Fund, which is used solely for the purpose of ordinary and necessary

expenses for the care and maintenance of the Cemetery. Under Section 1507 of the New York

Not-for-Profit Corporation Law, 15% of the proceeds from sales of lots, plots or parts thereof,

crypts and niches are required to be transferred to the Current Maintenance Fund. Deposits of

these amounts are made as sales are collected. The Cemetery is also required to remit nominal

fees per interment and cremation to a New York State Vandalism Fund.

Community Mausoleum Fund

The Community Mausoleum Fund is a trust fund established by the Cemetery to provide for the

future maintenance and preservation of community mausoleums. Deductions of 5% from the

gross sales proceeds of crypts and niches are transferred to the Community Mausoleum Fund.

Permanent Maintenance Fund

The Permanent Maintenance Fund is a trust fund to be held for the purpose of maintaining and

preserving the Cemetery, which is required to remain inviolate under Section 1507 of the New

York State Not-for-Profit Corporation Law. The income from its investments in marketable

securities is used solely for the maintenance and preservation of the Cemetery grounds. Under

Section 1507 of the New York Not-for-Profit Corporation Law, 10% of the proceeds from sales

of lots, plots or parts thereof, crypts and niches are required to be transferred to the Permanent

Maintenance Fund. Deposits of these amounts are made as sales are collected. An additional

amount of $35 per interment is also required to be deposited into the Permanent Maintenance

Fund.

Perpetual Care Funds

The Perpetual Care Fund consists of the Principal Fund and Surplus Fund.

The Principal Fund represents funds received for the maintenance of specific lots, graves and

private mausoleums. Pursuant to New York State law the principal of this fund is kept invested

and the income, net of 33% of investment fees charged, is transferred to the Surplus Fund for

disbursement against appropriate expenses.

The Surplus Fund represents the accumulated excess of income received from the Principal

Fund over expenses incurred for the maintenance of individual endowed lots, graves and private

mausoleums.

8



The Woodlawn Cemetery

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2019

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Adoption of New Accounting Policies

Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2014-09 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Effective January 1, 2019, the Cemetery adopted new U.S. GAAP guidance which did not result
in a change to previously recognized revenue, nor any change in the way the Cemetery
recognizes revenue, The only change is inclusion of the following informative disclosures:

The new guidance provides a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers and supersedes most current revenue
recognition guidance.

The core principle of the new guidance is that an entity should recognize revenue from the
transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
the entity expects to receive for those promised goods or services to customers. The guidance
includes a five-step framework to determine the timing and amount of revenue to recognize
related to contracts with customers. The new framework had an overall immaterial impact. This
guidance also requires new or expanded disclosures related to judgments made by entities
when following this framework.

As shown on the statements of activities, the Cemetery has several revenue sources. The
Cemetery has reviewed its various revenue sources and concluded that each of its contracts

includes a single performance obligation that is satisfied either at a point in time or over time
which is satisfied over the Cemetery’s year. Because no performance obligation spans beyond
the Cemetery year, all such obligations are satisfied by the Cemetery’s year end.

The new guidance requires the Cemetery to not recognize revenue until it is probable of

collection and, based on the Cemetery’s strong collection experience, the Cemetery has

concluded that all revenue recognized is probable of collection. As permitted by the guidance
the Cemetery has applied a portfolio approach to evaluating the customer’s ability to pay, rather
than evaluating each customer’s ability to pay separately.

ASU 2017-07 - Improving the Presentation of Net Periodic Pension Cost and Postretirement

Benefit Costs,

In March 2017, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASS”) issued guidance that
impacts the presentation of net periodic pension and postretirement benefit costs (net benefit

cost). Under the guidance, the service cost component of net benefit cost is reported in the

same line items as salaries and payroll taxes in the statements of functional expenses, unless

eligible for capitalization. However, the other components of net benefit cost (e.g. interest costs,

expected return on assets, amortization of prior servicelnet (gain) oss and transition obligation)

are now presented separately from service cost within employee benefits in the statements of

functional expenses. The guidance was effective January 1, 2019 with early adoption permitted.

The Cemetery adopted the guidance as of the effective date. The guidance is primarily a change

in financial statement presentation and did not have a material impact on the financial results.

This presentation change was applied retrospectively upon adoption.

9



The Woodlawn Cemetery

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2019

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Adoption of New Accounting Policies (continued)

ASU 2016-18 - Statements of Cash Flows

In November 2016, the SASS issued ASU 2016-18. Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230):

Restricted Cash. The ASU requires significant changes regarding how restricted cash is

classified and presented on the statement of cash flows. On January 1, 2019 the Cemetery

adopted the new guidance regarding the presentation and classification of restricted cash. The

guidance requires the Cemetery 1) to include restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents in

its cash and cash equivalent balances on the statement of cash flows 2) provide a reconciliation

between the balance sheet and the statement of cash flows when more than one line item for

cash, cash equivalent, restricted cash, and restricted cash equivalents is presented on the

balance sheet 3) transfers between restricted cash and cash are no longer presented and 4) if

restricted balances are material, disclosures must include information about the nature of the

restrictions.

Fair Value Measurements of Financial Instruments

The Cemetery follows U.S. GAAP guidance on fair value measurements which defines fair value

and establishes a fair value hierarchy organized into three levels based upon the input

assumptions used in pricing assets. Level 1 inputs have the highest reliability and are related

to assets with unadjusted quoted prices in active markets. Level 2 inputs relate to assets with

other than quoted prices in active markets which may include quoted prices for similar assets

or liabilities or other inputs which can be corroborated by observable market data. Level 3 inputs

are unobservable inputs and are used to the extent that observable inputs do not exist.

Pursuant to U.S. GAAP guidance, alternative investments where fair value is measured using

the Net Asset Value (“NAV’) as a practical expedient for fair value are not categorized within

the fair value hierarchy.

Investments Valuation

Investments are carried at fair value. Purchases and sales of securities are recorded on a trade-

date basis. Interest income is recorded on the accrual basis and dividends are recorded on the

ex-dividend date. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are included in the determination

of the change in net assets

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash include certain investments in highly liquid debt

instruments with maturities of three months or less at the time of purchase as well as money

market accounts. Restricted cash consists principally of cash held as required by certain

regulatory agreements.

10



The Woodlawn Cemetery

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2019

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Allowance for Uncollectable Receivables

An allowance for uncollectable receivables has not been provided as the Cemetery has the

requirement that all balances be paid for in full before an internment can take place, and the

cemetery has the ability to reclaim the plot/niche in the event of non-payment. Therefore
management has concluded that an allowance is not required.

Property, Buildings and Equipment

Purchases of property, plant and equipment having a cost of $10,000 or more are capitalized.

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives of
the assets1 ranging from 5 to 40 years. Community Mausoleum buildings put into service are

amortized on a per space cost of construction based on units sold during the fiscal year.

Amortization for the year ended December 31, 2019 was $759025 and is included in cost of

sales.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets such as property, buildings and equipment are reviewed for impairment

whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset

may not be recoverable. The Cemetery records impairment losses on long-lived assets used in
operations if the undiscounted cash flows estimated to be generated by those assets are less

than the carrying amounts of those assets. No impairment charges were recognized for the

years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018.

Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations

The Cemetery accounts for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations (“CARD”) in accordance

with U.S. G?URP, which defines a conditional asset retirement obligation as a legal obligation to

perform an asset retirement activity in which the timing and/or method of settlement are
conditional on a future event that may or may not be within the control of the entity. Uncertainty

with respect to the timing and/or method of settlement of the asset retirement obligation does

not defer recognition of a liability. The fair value of the CARD is recorded on a discounted basis

and accreted over time for the change in fair value. Management has determined that there are

no CARD liabilities that are required to be recorded at December 31, 2019 and 2018.

Prepaid Service Charges

The Cemetery has a plan which allows families who own property to pre-pay for opening,

inscriptions and cremation. Revenue from such sales is deferred and transferred into a separate

investment account, as collections are received, and restricted for this use.

Operations

The Cemetery distinguishes between operating and other activities in the statement of activities.

Other activities include investment gains or losses and fees, dividends and interest and

adjustment to pension and postretirement benefit liabilities.
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The Woodlawn Cemetery

Notes to Financial Statements
December31, 2019

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue Recognition

Revenue for sales of burial rights is recognized when the agreement is executed. Revenue for

interment and special care services is recognized when the services are provided.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to the

program or supporting functions of the Cemetery. Those expenses include depreciation1 the

administration office and grounds maintenance. Amortization is allocated based on the number

of spaces sold, depreciation is based on cost over five years, the office is allocated based on

estimates of time and effort and certain costs of the grounds maintenance are allocated based

on estimates of time and effort.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expense for the year ended December

31, 2019 was $178652.

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes

The Cemetery recognizes the effect of income tax positions only if those positions are more

than likely not to be sustained. Management has determined that the Cemetery had no

uncertain tax positions that would require financial statement recognition or disclosure.

Reclassification

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation

without affecting previously reported classes of net assets or changes in net assets.

Summarized Financial In formation

The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information in total

but not by individual fund. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a

presentation in conformity with U.S. GAAP. Accordingly, such information should be read in

conjunction with the Cemetery’s financial statements for the year ended December 31. 2018,

from which the summarized information was derived.

Subsequent Events Evaluation by Management

Management has evaluated subsequent events for disclosure and/or recognition in the financial

statements through the date that the financial statements were available to be issued, which

date is April 8, 2020.
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The Woodlawn Cemetery

Notes to Financial Statements
December 311 2019

3. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Cash and restricted cash consisted of the following at December 31, 2019:

Operating Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash $ 1247,604

Short term U.S. Treasury bonds 593,000

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash 601,162

Money market funds 3,469

Short term U.S. Treasury bonds 4,587,000

Total Cash and Restricted Cash $ 7,032,235

4. Interfund Borrowings

By action of the New York State Cemetery Board, the Supreme Court, Albany, New York, the
Cemetery has agreed to repay outstanding borrowings from the Principal Fund and Surplus
Fund. Repayment is being made in quarterly installments of $50,000 until December 31, 2021
and $100,000 thereafter until the loan balance is repaid, with a simple interest rate of 3.19%.
There is no penalty for prepayment. The principal portion of the payments is allocated 50% to
the Principal Fund and 50% to the Surplus Fund. The interest portion of the payments is
allocated totally to the Surplus Fund. The balance of the interfund liability at December31 • 2019
was $4,952,860.

During 2019 payments were made which reduced the principal balance as follows:

Principal
Surplus Fund Fund

Total Principal Interest Principal
Payment Portion Portion Portion

$200,000 $20,382 $159,236 $20,382

The future principal payments on inter-fund borrowings at December 31, 2019 are payable as
follows:

General Care Surplus Fund Principal Fund

Year Ending Perpetual from General from General

December31, Care Funds Care Fund Care Fund

2020 $ 42,084 $ 21042 $ 21,042

2021 43,446 21,723 21,723

2022 247,264 123,632 123,632

2023 255,268 127634 127,634

2024 263,531 131,766 131,766

2025 and thereafter 4,101,267 2,050,633 2,050,633

$ 4,952,860 $ 2,476,430 $ 2,476,430
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The Woodlawn Cemetery

Notes to Financial Statements
December31, 2019

5. Marketable Securities

The long-term objective of the investment program is to produce a stable and ever increasing

stream of income for distributions, along with principal appreciation slightly in excess of the rate

of inflation to enhance purchasing power with a moderate level of risk. To achieve this objective,

the Cemetery’s asset allocation between equity, debt and other securities is monitored and

balanced. The Cemetery utilizes for operations all current year earnings, net of one-third of

investment fees, except for realized and unrealized gains.

Investments in marketable securities at December 31, 2019 and the components of unrealized

gain (loss) on investments held by the various funds for the year ended December 31, 2019 are

as follows:

Fair Unrealized

Value Cost Gain (Loss)

General Care Fund
Fixed income mutual funds $ 4,180,220 $ 4,205,466

Fixed income bond funds 1,584,815 1,606,854

Total General Care Fund 5,765,035 5,812,320 $ (47,285)

Community Mausoleum Fund
Equities 4,674,013 4,258,487

Fixed income mutual funds 4,309,717 4,354,954

Total Community Mausoleum Fund 8,983,730 8,613,441 370,289

Permanent Maintenance Fund
Equities 30,785,987 26,195,563

Fixed income mutual funds 12,098,893 12,254,223

Total Permanent Maintenance Fund 42,884,880 38,449,786 4,435,094

Perpetual Care Funds
Surplus Fund

Equities 9,163,192 8,018,589

Fixed income mutual funds 4,370,093 4322,924

Total Surplus Fund 13,533,285 12,341,513 1,191,772

Principal Fund
Equities 110,146,649 81,556,468

Fixed income mutual funds 33,888,948 32,983,943

Total Principal Fund 144,035,597 114,540,411 29,495,186

Total Perpetual Care Fund 157,568,882 126,881,924

$215,202,527 $179,757,471 $35,445,056
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The Woodlawn Cemetery

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2019

5. Marketable Securities (continued)

Investments, at fair value grouped by the fair value hierarchy, as of December 311 2019
consisted of the following:

Level I Inputs

Equity securities $154,769,841
Fixed income mutual funds 58,847,871

Fixed income bond funds 1584,815

Total Investments $215,202,527

6. Property, Buildings and Equipment

Property, buildings and equipment consist of the following at December 31, 2019:

Land, buildings and equipment $ 7,842,627

Community mausoleums 36,389,211

Crematorium 1,116,650

Cremation Garden 380,424

45,728,912

Accumulated depreciation and amortization (36,939,605)

$ 8,789,307

7. State Restricted Funds

The Cemetery maintains various state-restricted funds for the purpose of maintaining and
preserving the cemetery, including all lots, crypts, niches, plots and parts thereof.

The Cemetery withdraws all income earned less one-third of investment fees from Community
Mausoleum Fund and Permanent Maintenance Fund to maintain and preserve the cemetery.
The Cemetery transfers all income earned in the Principal Fund less one-third of investment
fees to the Surplus Fund. Withdrawals are made from the Surplus Fund based on cost of care
and maintenance for which a perpetual care agreement has been made.
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The Woodlawn Cemetery

Notes to Financial Statements
December 311 2019

7. State Restricted Funds (continued)

The following is a reconciliation of the activity in funds restricted by state law which consists of

restricted cash and cash equivalents and investments on the Statement of Financial Position:

community Permanent Perpetual Care

Mausoleum Maintenance Surplus Principal

Fund Fund Fund Fund

Balance, December31, 2018 $ 8,241,287 $ 37,908,613 $ 13,000,141 $ 123,645,446

New Perpetual Care contracts . - 119,789

Statutory deposits and contributions 206,389 988,929 -

Investment income, net 380,680 1,489,376 647,339 4,774,550

Loan principal and interest . 179,618 20,382

Capital appreciation 889,178 5,516,705 1,759,444 20,747,384

Appropriation for expenditure (394,700) (1,624,136) (3,870,760)

Reclassifications .
4,269,997 (4,269,997)

Balance, December 31, 2019 $ 9,322,834 $ 44,279,487 $ 15,985,779 $ 145,037,554

Comprised of the following:
State restricted funds $ 9,322,834 $ 44,279,487

Perpetual care services restricted funds $ 15,985,779 $ 145,037,554

8. Benefit Plans

Pension Plan

US. GAAP requires the Cemetery to recognize the funded status (the difference between the

fair value of plan assets and the projected benefit obligations) of its plan in the statement of

financial position, with a corresponding adjustment to other changes in net assets.

Actuarial gains and losses that arise which are not recognized as net periodic benefit cost in the

same periods are recognized as a component of other changes in net assets and, likewise, will

be subsequently recognized as a component of net periodic pension cost using the Cemetery’s

historical policy for amortizing such amounts.

The Cemetery sponsors a defined benefit pension plan which includes two former plans merged

on December31 2010, the Pension Plan and the Hourly Pension Plan, The plan is subject to

the provisions of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (“ERISA”) and recently

amended in 2008 to be in full compliance with the Pension Protection Act of 2006 and other

applicable regulations.

The members of the former Pension Plan which covers certain full-time, non-unionized

employees of the Cemetery including hourly, salaried and commissioned employees and

features a five year cliff vesting period, normal retirement at age sixty-five, early retirement at

age sixty-two or at age sixty with required benefit service, and provisions for disability retirement,

Retirement benefits payable to most members covered under the Plan are 1.10 percent of

covered average annual compensation per year for each year of benefit service up to a

maximum of thirty-five years. The Plan was closed to new employees effective December 31,

2006; however, existing members continue to accrue benefit service under the Plan.
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The Woodlawn Cemetery

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2019

8. Benefit Plans (continued)

Pension Plan

Certain employees are members of the former Hourly Pension Plan, which covers certain full-
time, hourly, unionized employees of the Cemetery and features a five year cliff vesting period,
normal retirement at age sixty-five, early retirement at age sixty-two with required benefit
service, and provisions for disability retirement. Maximum retirement benefits payable under the
Plan are $34 per month in retirement income for each full year of benefit service. The plan was
closed to new employees effective December 31, 2003, and as of that date existing members
stopped accruing benefit service under the Plan.

The Cemetery’s funding policy is to contribute amounts necessary to meet the minimum funding
requirements of ERISA.

The amount recognized as other changes in net assets arising from the Plan at December 31,
2019 and 2018 that have not yet been recognized in net periodic pension cost consists of net
actuarial losses totaling $3,525,091 The amount that is expected to be recognized within net
periodic pension cost in 2020 is $488,678.

The following tables set forth the information relating to the Cemetery’s pension plan as of and
for the year ending December 31, 2019:

Funded status of plan
Benefit obligation at December31 $ 13,271,920

Fair value of plan assets at December31 8,349,730

Funded Status of Plan $ (4,922,190)

Accrued benefit cost in the statement of financial position $ (4,922,190)

Net periodic benefit cost (income) included in the
statement of activities 720,953

M,ortization of amounts previously not recognized
as a component of net periodic cost 506,478

Employer contributions 740,900

Benefits paid by the plan 741,467

Accumulated benefit obligation 13,022,880

Accumulated Periodic
Benefit Obligation Pension Cost

Weighted-average rates assumed
Discount rate applied to benefit obligation 4.25 % 3,32 %

Expected return on plan assets 7.50 % 7.50 %

Rate of compensation expense 3.00 % 3.00 %
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The Woodlawn Cemetery

Notes to Financial Statements
December31, 2019

8. Benefit Plans (continued)

Pension Plan (continued)

The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets (“EROA”) assumption of 7.50% was

selected using the “Building-Block Method” as described by the Actuarial Standards Board in

Actuarial Standards of Practice No. 27, Selection of Economic Assumptions for Measuring

Pension Obligations. Based on the expected returns from the Cemetery’s pension plan

investments as of the date of the latest actuarial study for the plan, an average estimated EROA

of 7.50% was selected.

As of and for the year ended December 31, 2019, all of the Plan’s mutual fund investments

were valued using Level 1 inputs. The fair value of the Plan’s assets consists of the following at

December 31, 2019:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 385,238

Fixed Income Mutual Funds
Bond market index fund 2,256,704

Equity Mutual Funds
U.S. growth and income 3,191,243

International 1,443,529

Alternatives 1,073,016

$ 8,349,730

At December 31, 2019, the target investment allocation for the pension plan assets was 55%

equity securities and 45% fixed income securities. The investment allocation is reviewed

quarterly when revisions may be made to reflect changing market conditions and performance

results.

Pension contribution for the plan for 2020 is expected to be $908,300.

Expected future benefit payments for each of the next five fiscal years and in the aggregate for

the subsequent five years ending December 31, is as follows:

2020 $ 866,835

2021 797,505

2022 809,305

2023 827,511

2024 842,974

2025-2029 4,101773

Pursuant to a resolution adopted by board of trustees, administrative expenses are charged to

the Pension Plan.
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Notes to Financial Statements
December31, 2019

8. Benefit Plans (continued)

Multiemplayer Pension Plan

The Cemetery contributes to the Local 808 1ST defined benefit pension plan (the “Union Plan”)
under the terms of collective-bargaining agreements that covers its union-represented
employees. The risks of participating in a multiemployer plan are different from a single-
employer plan in the following aspects:

A. Assets contributed to the multiemployer plan by one employer may be used to provide
benefits to employees of other participating employers.

B. If a participating employer stops contributing to the plan, the unfunded obligations of
the plan may be borne by the remaining participating employers.

C. If an employer chooses to stop participating in sortie of its multiemployer plans, the
employer may be required to pay those plans an amount based on the underfunded
status of the plan, referred to as a withdrawal liability.

The Cemetery’s participation in this type of Union Plan for the year ended December31, 2019
is outlined in the table below. The “EIN Number” column provides the Employer identification
Number (“EIN”). The most recent Pension Protection Act (“PPA”) zone status available in 2018
is for the Union Plan’s year-end at December31, 2017. The zone status is based on information
that the Cemetery received from the Union Plan and is certified by the actuaries of the Union
Plan, Among other factors, plans in the red zone are generally less than 65% funded, plans in
the yellow zone are less than 80% funded, and plans in the green zone are at least 80% funded.
The “FIPIRP Status Pending/Implemented” column indicates plans for which a financial
improvement plan (“FIP”) or a rehabilitation plan (“RP”) is pending or has been implemented.
The last column lists the expiration dates of the collective bargaining agreement to which the
various Union Plan is subject.

Pension Protection
Act Zone Status

Pension Fund EIN Number Plan Number 2019

Local 808 BT
Pension Plan 11-6204268 001 Green as of 9/30/18

Contributions by Expiration Date of

FIP/RP Status the Cemetery Surcharge ColIecti’e Bargaining

Pending/Implemented 2019 Imposed Agreement

No $ 52,523 No 2023

Multiemployer plan 5500 is not yet available for plan’s year ended in 2019.

19



The Woodlawn Cemetery

Notes to Financial Statements
December 311 2019

8. Benefit Plans (continued)

Deferred compensation plan

The Cemetery has a defined contribution pension plan which matches employee contributions

at 2.5% up to a maximum of 5% of eligible compensation. Nonunion employees who meet the

age and service requirements are eligible to participate in the plan. Participants become 100%

vested in employer contributions after three years of service. Total expense for this plan was

$58,327 for the year ended December31, 2019.

Postretirement Health Care and Life Insurance Benefits

The Cemetery provides certain retired employees with postretirement benefits. These benefits

are limited to health insurance enrollment in group benefit plans only, and any other benefits

provided to active employees which cease upon the termination of active employment. Eligibility

for postretirement benefits is contingent upon an employee going from active employment to

immediate benefit commencement from The Woodlawn Cemetery Pension Plan. Employees

who terminate active employment and enter a period of deferred vested pension eligibility before

benefit commencement are ineligible for postretirement benefits. Retirees less than age sixty-

five are offered continued enrollment in the health insurance plan that they were enrolled in as

active employees and are required to contribute to the cost of that coverage at the same level

as active employees. Retirees sixty-five years of age and older are required to enroll in

Medicare Part A and Part B upon eligibility attainment and then provided with supplemental

Medicare [nsurance and a prescription drug benefit. The Cemetery reserves the right to change,

amend or eliminate postretirement health insurance benefits at any time at its sole discretion.

The following table sets forth the information relating to the Cemetery’s postretirement health

care and life insurance benefits at December 31, 2019:

Funded status of plan
Benefit obligation $ 4,010,218

Fair value of plan assets -

Funded status of plan $ (4,010,218)

Accrued benefit cost in the statement of financial position $ (4,010,218)

Net periodic benefit cost (income) included in the

statement of activities 167,644

Amortization of amounts previously not recognized

as a component of net periodic cost -

Employer contributions 84,378

Benefits paid by the plan 84,378

Benefit expense recognized in the statement of activities 230,793

For measuring future health care costs, a 7.0% pre-Medicare and a 4.5% post-Medicare annual

rate for the per capita cost of covered health care benefits was assumed for 2020.
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8. Benefit Plans (continued)

Postretirement Health Care and Life Insurance Benefits (continued)

The amount recognized as other changes in net assets arising from the Plan at December 31,
2019 and 2018 that have not yet been recognized in net periodic pension cost consists of net
actuarial losses totaling $12,255. The amount that is expected to be recognized within net
periodic pension cost in 2020 is $2939.

Benefit contribution to the plan for 2020 is expected to be $185,391.

Expected future benefit payments for the plan for each of the next five years and in the
aggregate for the subsequent five years ending December 31, is as follows:

2020 $ 185,391
2021 203,796
2022 216116
2023 220,351
2024 218,301
2025- 2029 1,105,494

9. Loans Payable

Bank loan

In 2010, the Cemetery negotiated a $7,000,000 demand loan to fund the construction of phase
two of the garden conservatory mausoleum. Interest is set at prime less .50%. The outstanding
balance on the loan at December31, 2019 was $4,227,000. Interest expense for the year ended
December31, 2019 was $145,918. There are no scheduled principal payments required on this
loan though the Cemetery has been making voluntary payments of $10,000 per month to pay
down the principal since 2016. The loan is collateralized by the funds held in the community
mausoleum fund.

Line of credit

The Cemetery renewed its’ line of credit with a lending institution in 2018. The credit line has a
maximum borrowing of $750,000 to be used for general working capital. The loan has a maturity
date of August 1, 2020 and an interest rate of prime plus 1.0%. There was no outstanding
balance on the line of credit at December 31, 2019. The loan is secured by an interest in the
business assets of the Cemetery.

In 2017, the Cemetery entered into a second line of credit with the lending institution for an
additional credit line that has a maximum borrowing of $1,250,000 for a maximum term of twelve
months. The loan shall bear an interest rate of prime plus 3.35% but no less than 4%. At

December 31, 2019, the interest rate was 5.75% and there was an unpaid principal balance of

$233,541. Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2019 was $5,659.The loan is

secured by an interest in the business assets of the Cemetery.
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10. Related Party Transactions

The Cemetery pays operating expenses for the Woodlawn Conservancy, Inc. (the

Conservancy), formerly known as Friends of Woodlawn Cemetery, Inc., a related party. For the

year ended December 31, 2019, the Cemetery recorded support to the Conservancy in the

amount of $192,931, which is included in other administrative expense on the statement of

activities.

11. Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Cemetery to significant concentrations of credit

and market risk consist principally of cash and cash equivalents on deposit with financial

institutions, which from time to time may exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation

(“FDIC”) limit, investments and receivables. The Cemetery does not believe that a significant

risk of loss due to the failure of a financial institution presently exists. At December 31, 2019,

approximately $6,400,000 of cash was maintained with institutions in excess of FDIC limits.

The investment portfolio is diversified by type of investments and industry concentrations so

that no individual investment, investment manager or group of investments represents a

significant concentration of credit risk.

There is minimum risk of non-collection of accounts receivable as interment is not permitted

unless all receivable balances have been paid in full and the cemetery has the right to reclaim

the plot/niche in the event of non-payment.

12. Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities

The details to changes in operating assets and liabilities in the Statement of Cash Flows are as

follows:

2019 2018

Accounts receivable $ (219,425) $ (245,711)

Accrued interest receivable (54,291) 34,317

Other assets (245,277) (251,432)

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 1,030,060 137,689

Prepaid service charges 92,749 81,832

Accrued pension and post-retirement benefits (648,312) (465,804)

Accrued wages and salaries (194,960) 47,398

$ (239,456) $ (661,711)
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13. Liquidity

The financial assets of the Cemetery’s General Care Fund that is, without donor restriction or
restricted by state laws, are available for general expenditures. As part of liquidity management,
the Cemetery invests cash in excess of daily requirements in short-term investments.

The Cemetery’s General Care Fund financial assets due within one year of the statement of
financial position date for general expenditures are approximately as follows:

Cash $ 1,841,000
Accounts receivable due within one year 1,524,000
Accrud interest receivable 13,000
Marketable securities - Operating 1354,000

Total Financial Assets at Year End $4,732,000

Appropriations of approximately $5 million from the Community Mausoleum Fund, Permanent
Maintenance Fund and the Perpetual Care Surplus Fund is expected to be available within the
next 12 months for use by the General Care Fund.

The Cemetery maintains two credit lines with PCSB bank; one for $750,000 to support cyclical
operating cash needs and one for $1,250,000 which will be used to renovate the existing
crematory. The $750,000 line has not been used for approximately three years as the Cemetery
has been able to cover its cash needs out of operations. In addition to operating requirements,
the Cemetery has been making voluntary principal payments on the Garden Conservancy loan
($100,000 in 2019) and payments for the construction of Hillcrest II Mausoleums ($379,682 in
2019) which the Contractor has financed on an interest free basis. On Hillcrest, $1582743 has
been paid since 2016 with a balance remaining of $284,439. In addition, the Cemetery has
established a similar interest4ree construction finanGing arrangement with Carrier Mausoleums
for the Knollwood Niche/Crypt renovation. That entire project will cost $800,676 of which
$604,572 has been paid as of December31, 2019. Based upon the timing issues related to the
two construction projects, the company has the option to utilize the credit line to pay for the
construction projects thus reserving cash for operating expenses.
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14. Commitments and Contingencies

Sales tax

In 2016, issues related to the application of the New York Sales Tax to sales by cemeteries

were raised as a result of a random audit of a cemetery by the New York State Department of

Taxation and Finance. The New York State Association of Cemeteries is engaged in an effort

to clarify the issues and advocate for the enactment of special legislation to exempt sales by

cemeteries. Management is considering the impact of the mailer on the Cemetery and is

awaiting clarification and further developments before proceeding.

Executive Bonus Plan

In February 2017, the Cemetery has committed to a Section 162 Executive Bonus Plan for an

executive employee as part of a compensation package to create equivalency with former

executives who participated in the defined benefit plan which is now frozen for new employees.

The Cemetery will pay $50,000 per year for the next ten years to fund this benefit based on the

continued employment of the executive.

Construction Contract

In September 2016, the Cemetery entered into a construction contract totaling $1,666,000 to

expand a garden mausoleum expansion. Change orders to the contract total approximately

$195,000 as of December 31, 2019. The project is still in progress and expected to be

completed in 2019. The balance due on the contract totaled approximately $658,000 at

December 31, 2018.

Union

During 2019 and 2018, approximately 20% of the Cemetery’s employees are covered by a

collective bargaining agreement. The labor contract with the United Service Workers Union,

Local 74 expires December 31, 2018 and is currently being renegotiated.

15. Subsequent Events

Subsequent to year end, the COVID-19 pandemic has resulted in substantial volatility in the

global financial markets. As a result, the Cemeterys’ investment portfolio has incurred a

significant decline in its fair value since December 31, 2019. Because the value of the

Cemetery’s individual investments have and will fluctuate in response to changing market

conditions, the amount of losses, if any, that will be recognized in subsequent periods, cannot

be determined,
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The Woodlawn Cemetery

General Care Fund
Cemetery Operations and Adminstration

Year Ended December 31, 2019
(with summarized totals for the year ended December 31, 2018)

Cemetery Cemetery Cemetery Cemetery Cemetery 2019 2018

Service M&ntenance Sales Administration Security Total Total

REVENUE
Sales $ - S - $ 8,925,029 $ - $ - $ 8,925,029 $ 8,993,889

Costof sales -
- (759,025) -

- (759,025) (941,306)

Service charges 2,590,506 - - - - 2,590,506 2,650982

Investment income - (59,282) - -
- (59,282) 48,251

Investment fees - - - (1,316) - (1,316) (1,128)

Other income - 80,198 422,923 255 - 503,376 314755

Interfund transfers - 1,886,765 - - - 1,888,765 1,761,436

Statutory deductions (27,475) 1,450,644 (2,518,487) - - (1,195,318) (1,340,917)

Perpetual care services - 3,847,489 - - - 3,847,489 3,371,560

Total Revenue 2,563,031 7,207814 5,970,440 (1,061) - 15,740,224 14,857522

EXPENSES
Wages 564.143 810,615 - 1,172 369,480 1,745,410 1,865,012

Salaries 169,906 458,283 96,864 1,435,366 125,334 2,285,753 2,156,072

Commission - 1,450,904 - - 1,450,904 1,420,826

Payroll taxes 57,823 112,675 97,437 96,323 61,903 426,161 413,738

Fringe benefits 86,049 403,736 85,105 713,745 43,953 1,332,588 1,383,771

Material 29,033 86,165 893 1,825 32 117,948 139,514

Contract services - 1,618,534 - - - 1,618,534 1,529,499

Vehicle and equipment repairs 19,176 66,313 6,524 5,760 7,189 104,962 136.970

Advertising and printing 3,620 23.634 195,299 13,890 - 236,343 167,196

Professional fees 233 314,648 10,779 393,277 282 719,219 728,204

Insurance 26,280 139,070 - 240,271 - 405,621 355,745

Utilities 70,607 117,574 75,252 79175 33,406 376,014 427.733

Repairs and maintenance 91.075 1,033,571 134,894 36,349 21,861 1,317,750 694,501

Other administrative expenses 28,086 156715 151,017 399,032 19,164 766014 1,175,780

Interest expense - 64,961 145,918 5,659 - 216,538 199,964

Depreciation 53,332 97,616 39,474 152,426 - 342,848 275,420

Total Expenses 1,199,263 5,506,110 2,5,360 3,574,270 682,604 13,462,607 13,069,945

Change in Net Assets
From Operations Before
Other Changes $ 1,363,768 $1,701,704 $3,470,080 $ (3,575,331) $ (682,604) $ 2,277,617 $ 1,787,577

See independent auditors report
25



The Woodlawn Cemetery

General Care Fund
Summary of Service Department Operations

Year Ended December 31,2019

(with summarized totals for the year ended December31 2018)

2019 2018

Service Crematory Total Total

REVENUE
Service charges $1,587,208 $ 1,003,298 $ 2590506 $ 2,650982

Statutory deductions (27,475) - (27,475) (29,365)

Total Revenue 1559,733 1,003298 2,563,031 2,621,617

EXPENSES
Wages 353,243 210,900 564,143 667,748

Salaries 149,477 20,429 169,906 469,336

Payroll taxes 39,523 18,300 57,823 86,885

Fringe benefits 71,223 14,826 86,049 437,761

Material 6,919 22,114 29,033 42,122

Vehicle and equipment repairs 19,176 19,176 8,246

Advertising and printing - 3,520 3,520 3,527

Professional fees - 233 233 2,925

Insurance 26,280 26,280 24,903

Utilities 1,492 69,115 70,607 100,583

Repairs and maintenance 12,696 78,379 91,075 -

Other administrative expenses 18,167 9,919 28,086 109,865

Depreciation 47,522 5,810 53,332 43,366

Total Expenses 719,438 479,825 1,199,263 1,997,267

Change in Net Assets From
Operations Before Other Changes $ 840,295 $ 523,473 $ 1,363,768 $ 624,350

See independent auditors’ report
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The Woodlawn Cemetery

General Care Fund
Summary of Maintenance of Cemetery Operations

Year Ended December 31, 2019

(with summarized totals for the year ended December31 2018)

Restricted 2019 2018

Maintenance Maintenance Total Total

REVENUE
Investment income $ (59282) $ - $ (59,282) $ 48,251

Investment fees -
(1.128)

Other income 80,198 - 80198 155,613

Permanent Maintenance Fund income 1518,355 - 1,518355 1,393,962

Community Mausoleum Endowment Fund income 370,410 - 370,410 367,474

Statutory deductions 1450,644 - 1450,644 1,398,233

Perpetual care services - 3,647,489 3,847,489 3,371,560

Total Revenue 3,360,325 3,847,489 7,207,814 6,733,965

EXPENSES
Wages 151,695 658,920 810,615 1,197,264

Salaries 97,689 360,594 458,283 214,097

Payroll taxes 19,345 93,330 112,675 107,572

Fringe benefits 64,197 339,539 403,736 541,989

Material - 86,165 86,165 97,095

Contractservices 1,017,232 601,302 1,618,534 1,529,499

Vehicle and equipment repairs 57,386 8,927 66,313 107,014

Advertising and printing - 23,634 23,634 9,655

Professional fees 16,977 297,671 314,648 47,415

Insurance - 139,070 139,070 283,462

Utilities 25,775 91,799 117,574 235,095

Repairs and maintenance 714,478 319,093 1,033,571 694,501

Otheradministrative expenses 14,896 144,019 158,715 488,124

Interest expense 64,961 - 64,961 -

Depreciation 70,188 27,428 97,616 200,804

Total Expenses 2,314,619 3,191,491 5,506,110 5,753M86

Change in Net Assets From

Operations Before Other Changes $ 1,045,706 $ 655,998 $ 1,701,704 $ 980,379

See independent auditors’ report
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The Woodlawn Cemetery

General Care Fund
Summary of Sales Operations

Year Ended December 31, 2019

(with comparative amounts for the year ended December 31, 2018)

2019 2018
REVENUE
Sales $ 8925,029 $8,993,889

Cost of sales (759025) (941,306)

Other income 422923 159,142

Statutory deduction for
Current Maintenance Fund (1423,169) (1,415,680)
Permanent Maintenance Fund (988,929) (1,047,668)
Community Mausoleum Fund (206,389) (246,437)

Total Revenue 5,970,440 5,501,940

EXPENSES
Salaries 96,864 160,139
Commissions 1,450,904 1,420,826
Payroll taxes 97,437 119,984
Fringe benefits 85,105 604,526
Material 893 297
Vehicle and equipment repairs 6,524 21,710
Advertising and printing 195,299 154,014
Professional fees 10,779 921
Utilities 75,252 -

Repairs and Maintenance 134,894 -

Other administrative expenses 161,017 139,473
Interest expense 145,918 -

Depreciation 39,474 -

Total Expenses 2,500,360 2,621,890

Change in Net Assets From
Operations Before Other Changes $3,470,080 $2,880,050

See independent auditors’ report
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The Woodlawn Cemetery

General Care Fund
Summary of Sales Revenue

Year Ended December31, 2019
(with summarized totals for the year ended December31 2018)

2019 2018

Land Sales Mausoleums Total Total

REVENUE
Sales $ 4,822,899 $ 4,102,130 $ 8,925,029 $ 8,993,889

Cost of sales - (759,025) (759,025) (941,306)

Other income 47,580 375,343 422,923 159,142

Statutory deductions
Current Maintenance Fund (759,285) (691,359) (1,450,644) (1,415,680)

Permanent Maintenance Fund (433,877) (555,052) (988,929) (1,047,668)

Community Mausoleum Fund - (206,389) (206,389) (246,437J

Total Revenue $ 3,677,317 $2,265,648 $ 5,942,965 $ 5,501,940

See independent auditors’ report
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The Woodlawn Cemetery

General Care Fund
Summary of Service Charges

Year Ended December 31, 2019
(with comparative totals for the year ended December31 2018)

2019 2018

SERVICE CHARGES
Interment fees $ 1,372,704 $ 1,410,441

Cremation fees 1003,298 11061539

Annual care 80,156 62,370

Foundations 134,348 116,632

Total Service Charges $ 2,590,506 $ 2,650,982

See independent auditors’ report
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The Woodlawn Cemetery

General Care Fund
Detail of Selected Expenses

Year Ended December 31, 2019
(with comparative totals for the year ended December31, 2018)

2019 2018

EXPENSES
Wages, Salaries and Commissions

Officersalaries $ 716,526 $ 556627

Office salaries, exclusive of officer and sales compensation 985,802 755,873

Sales salaries and commissions 1,450,904 1,580,965

Labor maintenance, including direct supervision 1745410 1,411,361

Labor other, including direct supervision 583424 1,137,084

Total Wages, Salaries and Commissions $ 5,482,066 $ 5,441,910

Fringe Benefits
Health Insurance $ 374,994 $ 413,711

Dental 36,119 42,277
Pension 812,271 677,716

Group life insurance (42583) (10,439)

Supplemental life insurance 49340 (2,043)

401(k) employer match 73,711 71,667

401(k) administrative fee 1,192 1,446

Taxable fringe benefits 51,958 41,968

Workman’s Compensation 214120 285,229

Union Welfare Fund 256,923 201,761

Union Pension Fund 57,741 45,399

Employee uniforms 17,524 16490

Postretirement benefits 156,941 212283

Prescription Drug Plan - retirees 50,056 32,654

Total Fringe Senefits $ 2,110,307 $ 2,030,119

Professional rees
Accounting $ 70,008 $ 44,000

Actuary 26,892 32,307

Trustee fees 162,500 253,144

Labor legal 25,665 21,044

Legal 16,404 35,878

Consulting 417,750 341,831

Total Professional Fees $ 719,219 $ 728,204

See independent auditors’ report
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The Woodlawn Cemetery

General Care Fund
Detail of Selected Expenses

Year Ended December 31, 2019
(with comparative totals for the year ended December31, 2018)

2019 2018

Insurance
Property and liability $ 165,422 $ 141,417

Automobile 140,572 116,748

Umbrella 52,208 50,200

Director’s and officers 47,419 47,380

Total Insurance $ 405,621 $ 355,745

Other Administrative Expenses
Support to Woodlawn Conservancy $ 192931 $ 133,294

Payroll processing fees 57661 39,680

Office supplies 48,106 54,029

Postage 30,694 35,687

Meetings, conferences, & travel 107,263 163,119

Lease expense 34,047 15,576

Licenses and fees 5,026 9,028

Dues and publications 9,347 11,028

Vehicle and office equipment and maintenance 104,962 44341

Information technologies expense 78,565 1211949

Bank and credit card fees 79,059 89,442

Repair and maintenance 1,317,750 397,212

Miscellaneous 18,450 23,575

Total Other Administrative Expenses $ 2,083,861 $ 1,137,960

See independent auditors’ report
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The Woodlawn Cemetery

Summary of Additions of Principal to Trust Funds

December31, 2019

The principal value represents the corpus of funds received from lot owners. During the year ended
December31, 2019, $101,550 of new funds was admitted to the Principal Fund. The new funds were
admitted at the end of each calendar quarter in which received and were assigned participating units
based on the market value of a unit at the end of the quarter, as follows:

Principal Value Number of
Value Per Unit Units

Balance, December31, 2018 $ 28,846396 23,128,336

Quarterly additions of new funds in 2019
March 31 58,099 5.84144 9,946
June30 42,734 5.96261 7,167
September30 5,158 5.96991 864

December31 8,592 6.26696 1,371

Total additions for year 114,583 19,348

Withdrawal of funds bequest - -

Net additional trust principal received 114,583 19,348

Balance, December 31, 2019 $ 28,960,979 23,147,684

See independent auditors’ report
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The Woodlawij Cemetery
Conflict of Interest Policy

Date Approved: March 16,2017

This Conflict of Interest Policy is intended to assure the Directors, Officers and Key Employeesof the Woodlawn Cemetery (the “Corporation’ act in the Corporation’s best interest.
Conflict of Interest Defined: For purposes of this Policy, a “Conflict of Interest” means, andwill be deemed to exist in the following circumstances:

a. Outside Interests. Any transaction, agreement or any other arrangement between theCorporation or any affiliate of the Corporation in which a Related Party has afinancial interest

b. Gifts. Gratuities and Entertainment. A Related Party accepting gifts, entertainment orother fivors from any individual or entity that (i) does or is seeking to do business
with the Corporation or (ii) under circumstances where in might be inferred that such
action was intended to influence or possib]y would influence the Related Party in the
performance of his or her duties. This does not preclude the acceptance of items of
nominal or insignificant value or entertainment or nominal or insignificant value
which are not related to any particular transaction or activity of the Corporation.

Defined Terms: The following terms have the following meanings when used in the Policyr

“Key Employee” means any person who is in a position to exercise substantial influence over
the affairs of the Corporation, as referenced in 26 U.S.C. Section 4958(f)(1)(A) and fbrther in 26CFR Section 53.4958-3(c), (d)and (e) or succeeding provisions.

“Related Party” means (i) any Director, Officer or Key Employee of the Corporation or anyaffiliate of the Corporation, (ii) any Relative ofany Director, Officer or Key Employee of theCorporation or any affiliate of the Corporation and (iii) any entity in which any individual
described in clauses (i) or (ii) has a thirty five percent (35%) or greater ownership or beneficialinterest or, in the case of a partnership or a professional corporation, a direct or indirect
ownership interest in excess of five percent (5%).

“Relative”, with respect to an individual, means his or her (i) spouse, ancestors, brothers and
sisters (whether whole or half blood), children (whether natural or adopted), grandthildren,
great-grandchildren and spouses of brothers, sisters, children, grandchildren and great-
grandchildren or (ii) domestic partners (as defined in. Section 2994-A of the New York Public
Health Law).

Disclosure Procedures:
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a. Prior to ameetingofthe the Bow] of Directors (the “Board”) or committeeof theBoard (a “Committee”) involving a Conflict of Interest or a possible Conflict ofInterest, a Related Party having a Conflict of Interest or possible Conflict of Interestwill disclose all the facts material to the Conflict of Interest or possible Conflict ofInterest to the chairman of the Audit Conunfttee or, if he or she deems appropriate,the chairman of the Board. Such disclosure may be made in person, telephonically, ittwriting (including via e-mail or similar media).

b. The chaimian of the Audit Committee or the Board, as the case may be, will disclosethe Conflict of Interest or possible Conflict of Interest at the outset of any
deliberations regarding the matter giving rise to a Conflict of Interest or possible
Conflict of Interest, Such disclosure, and the resolution thereof, must be reflected inthe minutes ofany such meeting at which the matter giving rise to such Conflict or
Interest or possible Conflict of Interest was discussed or was voted on.

Rccusal:

a. Any Related Party having a Conflict of Interest may not be present at or participate in
the deliberation of such Board, Committee or owners meeting relating to a matter
giving rise to such Conflict ofInterest and prior to such discussions will recuse
himselfor herself from such meeting. Further, a Related Party having a Conflict of
Interest may not vote on any matter giving rise to such Conflict of Interest,

b. A Related Party having a Conflict of Interest may not attempt to improperly infinence
the deliberation or voting on a matter giving rise to such Conflict of Interest.

Compliance with Statute: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the procedures fordisclosing, addressing and documenting conflicts of interest is intended to and will, at all times,conform with the requirements of Section 715 of the New York Not-For-Profit Corporation Law,as the same may be amended from time to time, and will be deemed amended to the extent, fromtime to time, necessary to confbrm to such requirements.

Review of Policy; Delivery of Conflict Information Form: (1) Each existing Director of the
Corporation will promptly, and annually thereafter, complete, sign and submit and (ii) prior to
his or her beginning to serve as a Director, and annually thereafter, each new Director will
complete, sign and submit to the Secretary of the Corporation a written statement identi’ing, to
the best of his or her knowledge, any entity of which such director is an officer, director, trustee,
member, owner (either as a sole proprietor or a pariner), or employee and with which the
Corporation has a relationship, and any transaction in which the Corporation is a participant and
in which the Director might have a conflicting interest Each year, the Secretary will provide the
chairman of the Audit Committee with a copy of all completed conflict information forms.
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TUE WOODLAWN aMEnitY

Conflict of hiterest Information Form

Please describe, to the best of your knowledge, (1) any relationships, positions orcircumstances in which you are involved that you believe may pose a Conflict of Interest (asdefined in the Woodlawn Cemetery’s Couffict of Interest Policy) for you in your role as Directorof the Woodlawn Cemetery and (2) any entit% of which you are an officer, direetor, trustee,member owner or employee, with which the Corporation has a relationship. (If there ü notenough room below, please attach additionalpages.)

I hereby certifSr that the information set forth above is true and complete, to the best of
my knowledge. I have reviewed, and agree to abide by, the Conflict of Interest Policy ofThe
Woodlawn Cemetery currently in effect,

Signature:’ Date:_____________________
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EXHIBIT C 



SCHEDULE A INCOME & EXPENSES

Revenue 2019 2018 2017 2016
Service Charges $3,177,668 $3,167,843 $2,974,010 $3,159,737

Gross Sales $10,014,694 $9,902,865 $10,132,507 $9,022,760
    Less: Discounts $1,097,177 $933,248 $1,099,410 $798,653
          Statutory Deductions $1,434,143 $1,564,329 $1,355,778 $1,409,171

Cost of Goods Sold $228,331 $181,311 $275,049 $213,837
$7,255,043 $7,223,977 $7,402,270 $6,601,099

Investment Income $245,001 $203,864 $435,566 $327,916

Income Transfers                        PMF $1,518,354 $1,393,962 $1,273,889 $1,300,196
CMEF $370,411 $367,474 $356,773 $330,427

RF $3,847,489 $3,371,560 $3,325,416 $3,326,899
$5,736,254 $5,132,996 $4,956,078 $4,957,522

Total Revenue $16,413,966 $15,728,680 $15,767,924 $15,046,274
Expenses
Payroll Exepense

Labor $1,745,410 $1,865,012 $1,893,843 $1,815,269
Salaries $2,285,753 $2,155,500 $2,069,974 $2,086,579

Commissions $1,450,904 $1,420,826 $1,532,883 $1,338,867
$5,482,067 $5,441,338 $5,496,700 $5,240,715

Payroll Taxes $477,578 $455,531 $476,983 $418,204
Fringe Benefits $1,281,170 $2,045,587 $1,966,993 $1,947,786

$1,758,748 $2,501,118 $2,443,976 $2,365,990
Total Payroll Expense $7,240,815 $7,942,456 $7,940,676 $7,606,705

Field Overhead
Materials $117,948 $139,514 $137,517 $160,880

Contracted Services $1,618,534 $1,529,499 $1,577,880 $1,400,565
Repairs and Maintence $1,422,712 $1,228,683 $1,065,201 $967,517

Public Relations/Promotions $236,343 $167,196 $198,338 $179,518
Professional Fees $137,110 $133,229 $213,098 $172,949

Investment Mgt. Fees $4,078 $3,035 $4,096 $3,611
Trustee Fees $162,500 $253,144 $343,827 $275,000

Consulting Fees $419,609 $364,331 $187,970 $213,022
Insurance $405,621 $348,629 $379,901 $380,765

Utilities $376,014 $427,733 $382,225 $382,737
Gen'l & Admin Expenses $573,091 $608,847 $558,965 $599,778

Loan Interest Expense $216,538 $199,964 $171,420 $144,998
Total Field Overhead $5,690,098 $5,403,804 $5,220,438 $4,881,340

Total Expenses $12,930,913 $13,346,260 $13,161,114 $12,488,045

Net Income before Depreciation $3,483,053 $2,382,420 $2,606,810 $2,558,229

Depreciation/Amortization $1,018,664 $1,169,052 $1,282,544 $1,361,647

Net Income (Increase Fund Balance) $2,464,389 $1,213,368 $1,324,266 $1,196,582




